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Independent auditor’'s report

To the Shareholders and Management Board of
Azer-Turk Bank OJSC

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Azer-Turk Bank OJSC (the “Bank™), which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the statement of profit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompaning financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,

the financial position of the Bank as at 31 December 2018, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Bank in
accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of management and Audit Committee for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited
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The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Bt & Yung, Holdings (CTS) B

22 April 2019

Baku, Azerbaijan

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company 2018 financial statements

Statement of financial position
As at 31 December 2018
(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Notes 2018 2017
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 120,792 170,306
Amounts due from credit institutions 6 15,746 26,061
Loans to customers 7 165,326 116,730
Investment securities 8 51,827 4,053
Property and equipment 9 5,626 6,421
Intangible assets 10 3,076 2,570
Current income tax assets 483 804
Deferred income tax assets 11 = 371
Other assets 13 3,980 2,868
Total assets 366,856 330,184
Liabilities
Amounts due to credit institutions and government organizations 14 90,337 74,476
Amounts due to customers 15 220,008 200,584
Deferred income tax liabilities 11 95 =
Other liabilities 13 4,522 3,800
Total liabilities 314,962 278,860
Equity 16
Share capital 50,000 50,000
Retained earnings 1,855 1,324
Fair value reserve 39 —
Total equity 51,894 51,324
Total liabilities and equity 366,856 330,184

Signed and authorized for release on behalf of the Management Board of the Bank:

Orkhan Huseynov Chairman of the Management Board
Orkhan Gadirbey Deputy Chairman of the Management Board
22 April 2019

The accompanying notes on pages 6 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Azer-Tirk Bank ©pen Jeint Stock Company 2018 financial statements

Statement of profit or loss
For the year ended 31 December 2018

(Figures in tables are it thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

.Notes. 2018 2017

Interest income
l.oans to customers 12,663 13,661
Amounts due from ‘credit institutions 2,837 2,747
Investment securities _ 1,536 200
Net Interest income calculated using the effective interest ' _ _

method 16,926 16,608
Other interest income _ o4 -

16,980 _ 16,608
Interest expense _ .
Amounts due to customers _(5,‘2_8(5_) (3,888)
Amounts’due fo credit institutions and government organizations {2,281} (2,458)
{7,567) {6,346)

Net interest income 9,413 10,262
Credit loss reversal/(expense) on financial assets. 8,12 5186 {65)
Net interest income after credit loss reversali{expense) 14,599 10,197
Net fee and commission income 18. 3,855 3,963
Net gains/(losses) from foreign currencies: o
- dealing 3,516 4107
- translation differences (220) (1.072)
Other income 19 184 _ .1_,04_0
Non-interest income 7,435 8,038
Personnel expenses 20 {9.666) (8,457)
General and administrative expenses 20 {7,812} (7,145)
Depreciation and amortization 8,10 (2,008} (1,983)
Impairment of investment securities available-for-salg X (135)
Provision reversal for credit losses on guarantees and credit o _

related commitments ' 892; 986
Other impairment and provisions éxpense - (175)
Non-interest expenses {18,534) {16,909)
Profit before income tax expense 3,440 1,326
Income tax expense 11 (1,326) (398}
Profit for the year - 2,114 928

The accompariying notes on pages 6 to 48 are an integral part of these financial statemenits.
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Azer-Turk Bark Gpen Joint Stock Company

2018 financial statements

Statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbajjani manats)

Profit for the year

Other comprehernisive income

Other comprehensive income fo be reclassified fo profit or loss. in
subsequent pericds

Unrealised lgsses on investment securitiés available-for-salé

Impairment of invesiment securities available-for-sate reciassified
to the statement of profit or loss

Net change in fair value of debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Income tax refating to components of ather comprehensive
income i)

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Notes 2018 20917

2,114 928

X (103)

X 103,

49 X

(10} -

39 -

2,153 928

Total comprehensive income forthe year

The accompanying noteés on pages 6.16 48 are arrintegral part of these finaricial statements.



Azef-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company 2018 financial statements

Statement of changés in equity
For the year-ended 31 December 2018
(Figures in tables are in:thousands ofAzerb'af,_f‘ani manats)

Share Fair value Retained ‘Totaf
capital reseive -earnings equity
31 Deceimber 2016 50,000 - 2,296 52,296
‘Profit-for the year - - 928 928
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 928 _ 928
Dividends deciared and paid {Note 16) - - (1,900) {1,900)
31 December 2017 50,000 i 1,324 51,324
Impact.of adopting IFRS 9 (Note 3) - - (659) {6535)
Restated opening balance _ _
underIFRS 9 50,000 - 669 50,669
Profit for the year: - - 2,114 2,114
‘Other comprehensive income for the year - 39 - 39
Total comprehensive income for the year - 33 2,114 2,153
Dividends declared and paid {Note 16) il = {928) {928) )
31 December 2018 50,000 39 1,855 51,894

The-accompanying notes on pages 6 fo 48 are an integral part of these-financial statements.



Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Compariy 2018 financial statements

Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2018
(Figures.in tables are in'thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

_ Notes 2018 2017

Cash flows from operating activities
Interest received 15,378 17,697
Interest paid (5,748) (6,010)
Fees and commissions received 7,335 6,330
Fees and commissions paid (3,609) (2,745)
Net realized gains from currency dealing operaticns 3,327 4,107
Personnél expenses paid ' (10,364) (8,455)
General and administrative expenses paid (7,923) {7,048
Other income received 28 6
Cash flows {used in)/fram operating activities before _

changes in operating assets and liabilities (1,576) 3,882
Net (increase)/decrease in operating assets o
Amounts due from credit ingtitutions 10,025 95,412
Leans to customers (42,991) 24,563
Other assets (1,083) (485)
Net increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities
Amounts due 1o credit institutions-and government organizations 16,600 (89,051)
Amounts due to cusiomers 17,367 (30,142)
Other liabilities _ _ 3,327 {2,588)
Net cash flows from/(Used:in) operating activities before ' _

income tax 1,659 (8,409)
Income tax paid (385) (265)
Nat cash from/{used in) operating. activities 1,274 {8,674)
‘Cash flows from investing activities _
Proceeds from sale and redemption of investment securities 162,473 33,862
Purchase of investment securitigs - (209,810} {33,654}
Purchase of property and equipment _ {9686). (422)
Proceeds from: sale of property and equipmert - 11
Acquisition of intangible assets (962) {720)
Net-cash used in investing activities. {49,265) (923)
Dividends paid to shareholdérs of the Bank 16 (928) (1,900)
Net cash used in finaricing-activities (928) {1,900)
Effect of exchange rates chianges on cash and cash equivalents {595) {2,523)
Net decrease-in cash and cash éguivalents ' {49,514) {14,020)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 170,306 184,326
Cash and cash equiivalents, ending 5 120,792. 170,308

Theé accompanying notes.on pages__'ﬁfo 48 are an integral part-of these financial statements.




Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes ta the 2018 financial stalements

(Figires in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Principal activities

Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company (the “Bank”) was incarporated in the Republic of Azerbaijan in May 1995.
The Bank is regulated by the Finahcial Markets Supervision Authority of Republic of Azerbaijan (the “FMSA") and
conducts its business under license number 234,

The Bank's prihcipal business activity ‘is corporate and retail banking operations. This-includes deposit taking and

commercial lending in freely converfible currencies and in Azetbaijani manat (‘AZN"), transfer payments in Azerbaijan
-and abroad, support of clients' exportfimport transactions, foreign currency exchange and other banking services to its

commercial and retail customers.

As at 31 Decerriber 2018, the Bank's network comprlsed of head office; 1 customer service department, 6 branches and
3 unit service (2017:head office, 1 customer service department, 6 branches and.3 unit sefvice),

Thé number of Bank's erriployess as at 31 December 2018 was 389 (2017: 370).
The Bank’s registered address is 85, J. Mammadguluzade sir., 192/193, Baku, AZ1078, Azerbaijan.

As at 31 December, the following shareholders owned the outstanding shares of the Bank:

Shareholder- 2018, % 2017, %
Government of the Republic of Azerbaijah 75.00 75.00
T.C. Ziraat Bankasi A.S. 12.37 12.37
“AzRe Reinsurance” OJSC 6.55 6.55
“Qala Lifg™ Insurance Company 0JSC 5.00 5.00
*Ziraat Bank International AG" 1.08 1.08
Total 100.00 ~100.00

As at 31 December 2018 and-2017, the ultimate shareholder of the Bank is the Governmant of the Republic of Azerbaijan
as represented by the Siate Commitiee on Property Issues of Azerbaijan Republic {the "Government”}.

Basis of preparation
General
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards CIFRS"M.

The Azerbaijani manat ("AZN") is the functional and presentation currency of the Bank as the majority of transactions are
denominated, measured, or funded in-AZN. Transactions in other currencies are treated as transactions in foreign
currencies. The Bank is required to.maintain its records-and prepare its financial statements in AZN and i in accordance
with IFRS. The financial statements are presented in thousands of AZN except per share amounts and unless otherwise
indicatéd. The financial statements have been prepared Under thie historical cost convention except as disclosed in
the-accounting policies below. For example, investment securities have been measured at fair value,

Summary of accounting policies
GChanges in accouriting policies

The BariK applied IFRS 15-and IFRS 8 foF the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of adoption of
these new accounting. standards are described below. '

IFRS 9 Financial instruments

IFRS & replaces |AS 39 Financial Instruments. Recogniticn’ and Measurerierit for annual peri'ods on or after 1-January
2018. The Bank has not restated comparative informatiori-for 2017 for financial instruments in the scope of IFRS 9
Therefore, the comparative information for 2017 is reported under {AS 39 and is not comparable to the information
presented for 2018. Differences- arising from the- adoption of IFRS 9 have been recognised directly. in retained earmings
as at 1 January 2018 and are disclosed below.



Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to thé 2018 financial statements

(Figures in tables are i thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Changes in accounting policies (continued)
(a)  Classificalion and.méasurement

Under IFRS 9, all debt financial assets that do not mest a “solely payment of principal and interest” (SPP) criterion, are

‘classified at initial recognmon as fair value fhrough profit ar loss: (FVPL). Under this criterion, debt instruments that do

not correspond to abasic lending afrangement”, such as instruments containing embedded conversion options or “non-
recourse” |oans, are measured at FVPL. For debt financial assets that meat the SPPI criterion, classification at initial

‘recognition is determined based on the business model, under which-these instruments are managed:

- Instruments that are managed on a “hold te collect’ basis are measured at amortised cost;

> instruments that are managed on a “hold t& collect and for sale” basis are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCH);

> Instruments that are managed on attier basis, including trading finaricial assets, will be measured at FVPL,

Equity financial assets are required to be classified at initial recognition as FVPL unless an irrevocable designation is
made fo classify the.instrument as FVYOCI. For equity investments classified as FVQOC!, alt reafised and unrealised gains
and losses, except for dividend income, are recognised in other comprehenswe income with no subsequent
reclasaﬁc:ahon to.profit and loss.

requurements Denvatwes will continue to be mieasured at FVPL. Embedded derivatives are no ionger separated from a
host financial asset.

(B} Impaimment

The: adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the Bank's accounting for loan impairmant by replacing 1AS 39
incurred loss approach with a forward-losking expected credit loss-{ECL) approach. From 1 January 2018, the Bank has
been recording the allowance for expected credit losses for all loans and other debt financial assets not held at. FVPL,
together with loan: commitmerits and financia! guaraniee contracts. Equity instrurnents are not subject to impatrment
under IFRS 9.

The allowance is baséd on the ECLs associated with the probability of default in the next twelve months uniess there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since origination. if the financial asset meets the definition of purchased or
originated credit impaired (POCI), the allowance is-based on the change’in the ECLs over the fife of the asset. Details of
the Bank’s impairment inethod are disclosed in'Note 21. The quantitative impact of applying IFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018
is disclosed in section (¢} below.

(c)  Effect of transition fo IFRS 9

The following tables set out the impact of adopting IFRS 9 on the statement of financial position and retained earnings

as at 1 January 2018 including the effect of replacing IAS 39 incurred credit loss gaiculations with IFRS 8 ECL.

IAS 39 measurement  Reclas- Remeasure- IFRS D
Financial assets Ref Cafegory- Amount  sification ment  Amount Category
Cash and cash equivalents L&R! 170,306 - -~ 170306 Amortised cost
Amounts due from credit institutions L&R 26,061 26,0617  Amortised ¢ost
Loans ta customers — amortised cost L&R 116,730 (653) (473) 115,604 Amortised cost
Loans to customers:—- FVYPL A - - 853 558, 1,211 FVPL (mandatory)
Investment securities — debt securities AFS? o FVOCI {debt)
at FYOCI 4,008 ~ - 4,008 -
Investment securities - equity securities AFS _ FVOCI {equity)
at FVoCl B 45 - - 45 '
QOther finangial assets — amortised cost. L&R: 238 - - 238 Amortised tost
Non-financial assets _
Deferred tax assets AN = 164 535
Total assets- 317,759 - 249 318;008
Non-financial liabilities .
Proyisions 1,280 - 904 2,184
Total liabilities 1,280 - 042184

' L&R; Loans and recelvables:
? A'FS_:.A\{aiiéb_le.—fq_rasal_e_:




Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to the 2018 financial statemenits

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies {(continued)
Changes in accounting policies {continued)

A As at T January 2018, the Bank’s analysis highlighted that certain loans to-customers did not meet the SPPI
criterion.. Therefore, these loans previously measured at amortised cost are classified by Bank as loans to
customers at. FVPL.

B The Baiik has electéd the option toirrevocably designate its previous AFS equity instruments as Equity instrumentis

at FVOCH,
The impact of transition to IFRS 9'on reserves and retained eamings is-as follows:
Reserves.
and retained
earnings
Retained earnings B
Closing balance under |AS 39 (31 December 2017) 1,324
Re-measurement impact of reclassifying financial assets held at amortised cost to-FVPL 558
Recognition of IFRS 9 ECL and dther re-measurement effects, inciuding those measured at o
FVOC] ' ' (1,377)
Deferred tax in relation to the above 164
Restated 6pening balance under IFRS 9 {1 January 2018) 669
Total change in equity due to adopting IFRS 9 (655)

The following table reconciles the. aggregate opening loan loss allowances ‘under IAS 39 and provisians for loan
commifments and financial guarantee contracts in accordance with 1AS 37 Provisions Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assels 1o the ECL dllowantes under [FRS 9.

Loan loss
allowance /
provision under ECL under
JAS 39/1AS 37 at IFRS 9 at
31 Dacember 1 January
2017 Re-measurement 2018
Impairment allowance for
Loans and receivablss at armortised cost (20,465) (1,466) (21,931)
Finaricial guarantees -and letters of credit (1,280) {904} (2,184)
(21,745) {(2,370) {24,115)

IFRS 15 Revenue from-Contracts with Customers

1{FRS 15, issued in May 2014, and amended in-April 2016, establishes a five-step model to-account for revenué arising
frem contracts with custamers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o
whichan entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goodsor sgrvicesto.a customer, However, the standard
does. not apply to revenug associated with financial instruments and leases, and therefore, does not impact the Bank's
ravenue including interest revenue, gains/(losses) on-aperations with securities which are covéred by IFRS & Financial
Instruments..

IFRIC Intempretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Considerations

‘The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the spot-exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense -or income (or part of it) on the derecogsition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to
advance consideration, the date of the transaction is the date on which an entity initially recognises the noh-monétary
asset or non-monetary fiability -arising from the advance consideration. If there are muitiple. payments or receipts in
advance; then the enfity must determine the date of the transactions for each payment or receipt of advance.
consideration. This Interpretation does not have any impact on the Bank’s financial statements.

Fair value measurement

The Bank measures financial instruments carried at FVPL and FVOCI at fair value at each batance sheet date.
'Fa'irv__alue isthe pr'i_ce that would be'reCeived'.to-sell an assetor paid to transfer a hiability in an o"rderly"transac'lion between
market participarits at the measurement date. The fair value ‘measurement is. based on the presumption that the’
transaction 1o seli the asset.or transfer the liabllity takes. place either; '

- In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

> In‘the absence of a principat market, in the most advantageous market for the asset.or liability.




A_zaraTurk Bank Open Joint Stock Carmpany ‘Notes to the 2018 financial statements

{Figures in tables are in thousands. of Azerbajjani manats)

‘Summary of accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement {continued)

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Bank. The fair value-of an asset or a liability
is measured using thé assumptions that market participants wouid use when pricing the asset or liability, assiiming that
market padicipanis act in their economic best interést. A fair value. measurement of & non-financial asset takes into

account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by usirig the asset in its highest and best use or by
sélling it to-another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

‘The:Bank uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available

to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable: mputs and minimising the use of unobservable inpuis.
All assets and tiabilities for which fair value is measured of disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within
the fair value hierarchy, describéd as follows, based on the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair vallie

measurement as-a whole:

[ tevel 1 - quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for idéntical assets or liabilities;

> Level 2 - valuation techniguesfor which the:lowest level input that is significant to-the fair value measurement is

directly or indirectly observable;

> Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measuremént is
unobsevable.

‘Farassets and liabilitte’s that are recognlsed in the financial statements cn a recurring basis, the Bank determines whether

transfers have occurred between Levels int the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input

that is significant t the fair value measurement as @ whole) at the end of each reparting period.

Financial assets and liabilities

initial recognition

Date of recognition

All-regular way purchases.and salés of findncial assets and liabilities are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date that
the Barik commits to purchase the asset of liability. Regutar way purchases.or salés are-purchases or sales of financial
assets and fiabilities that require delivery of-assets-and liabilifies within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace

Initial measurement

The classification of financial instriments at initial recognition depends on their contractual ferms and the business model
for managing the insiruments. Financial instruments. are initially measured at theit fair value and, except in the:case of
financial asséts and financial liabilities recorded at’ EVPL, transaction costs are added to, orsubtracted from, this amount.

Measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

From 1 January 201 8, the Bank classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets
and the asset's contractual terms, measured at either:

- Amortised cost;
> FVOCGI;
. FVEL:

Before 1 January 2018, the Bank classified its financial assets as loans and receivables (amortised cost), FVPL,
available-for-sale or held-to-maturity {amortised.cost).

Financiat liabilities, other than loan commitments and financial guarantees, are measured at amortised cost or at FVPL
when they are held for trading, are dérivative instruments or the fair value designation is appiied.
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Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures in tables.are in thousands of Azerbaijanj manats)

Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Amounts due from credit institutions, loans fo customers, invesiments securities af amortised cost

Before 1 January 2018, amounts due from credit-institutions' and loans tc ‘customers included non-detivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable paymerits that were not queted in an active market, other than those:

- That the Bank intended to sell immediately or in the near term:
- That the Bank, upon initial recagnition, designated as at FVPL or as available-for-sale;
> For which the Bank may not recover substantially all-of its Initial investment, other than because of credit

deterioration, which were designated as available-for-sale.
From 1 January 2018, the Bank tnly measures amounts due from credit institutions, loans to customers, investment debt
securities and other financial investments at amdrtized cost if both of the following conditions are met:
> The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows;

3 The contractual termis of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount cutstanding (SPPI).

Busifiess model assessmeni

The Bank dete_rmi'nes-'i_ts business model at the javel that best reflects. How it managdes groups. of financial assets to

achieve its business objective.
The Bank's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by<instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated
portfolios and is based on abservable factors such as:

> How the perfarmance of the business medel and the financial assets held wiihin that business model are
evaluated and reported to the entity’s key managemient personnel;

> The risks that affect the performance of the business mode! (and the financial:assets heéld within that business
madel) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed;

> How managers of the business. are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based on the fair

vaiue of the assets managed: or on the contractual cash flows collected);

~ The expected frequency, valire and timing of sales are.a_lso"important aspects of the'Bank’s assessment,

The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or 'stress case’

-Scendrios into.account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realised in a way that is different from the Bank's original

‘expectations, the Bank does not changethe classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business mode!,
but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial assets going forward.

The SPP/ test

As a second step of its classification process the Bark asseésses the -contraciual terms. of financial asset to identify
whether they meet the-SPP! test,

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test s defined s the fair vaiue of the financial asset at initial recognition and may change.
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premium/discount).

The most significant elements of interést within a lending arrangement are typically the consideraticn for the time value
of money and credit risk. To make the SPP|-assessment; the Bark applies judgement and considers relevant factors.
such as the currency in which the financial asset is denominated, and the_périod-for‘ which the interest rate is set.

In contrast, contractual terms that intreduice a more thari de minimis expostire 10 risks or volatility in the contractual cash
flows that are unrelated to & basiclending arrangement do not give sise to contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the amount outstanding, In such cases; the financial asset is required to be measured &t
FVPL.
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Azer-Turk:Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaifani manats)

Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and liabilities {continued)
Debt instrumients at FVYOC!

From 1-January 2018, the Bank appliés the new category under IFRS 9 of debt instruments measured at FVOC! when

‘both of the following conditions are met:

» The instrurhent is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting cantractual
cash flows anid selling fi financial assets;

> The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPP! test.

FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising duié to-changés in- fair
value recognised in OCI. Interest revenue and foreign exchange gains. and losses are recognised in profit or loss iny
the same manner as for financial asséts measured at amortised cost. On defecogrition, cumulative gains or losses
previously recognised in OCl are rfeclassified from CClto profit-or loss.

The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in the
statement.of financial position, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount equal to thé aliowance that would arise if
the assets were measured at amortised cost is recognised in OCI| as an accumulated impairment amount, with a
corresponding charge to profit or loss. The . accumulated less recognised in OCI is recycled to the profit-and loss upon
derecognition of the asget.

Equity instruments at FYOGI

From 1 January 2018, upon initiél recognition; the Bank occasionally elects to classify irrevocably some. of its eguity
investments as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on‘these equity instruments are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised in profit or
loss-as other income when the right of the payment.-has been established, except when the Bank benefits from such

proceeds as a recovery of part of the cast of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCL. Equity

instrumenis. at FVOCI are not subjectto an impairment-assessment. Upon disposal ofthese instruments, the accumulated

‘revaluation reserve is transferred to retained eamings.

Financial guarantees, letfers of credit and undrawn loan commitments

“The Bank issues financial guarantees, letters of credit and loan commitiments.

_Finangial guarantees are initially reccgmsed in the financial statements: at fair value, being the premium received,
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Bank’s liability undsr each guarantese is measured at the higher of the amount

initially. recogriised less' cumulative amortisation recognised. in the statement of profit or loss, and - unider 1AS 37
(before 1 January 2018) ~ the best estimate.of expenditure required to settle-any financial obligation arising as a result
of the guarantee, or — under IFRS @ (from 1.January 2018) — an ECL -provision.

Undrawn logi commitments. and letters of credits are cemmitments under which, over the duration of the commitment,
the Bank is required to provide & loan with pre-specified terms to the customer, Similar fo financial guarantee contracts,
under IAS 39, a provision was made if they weie an.onerous contract but from 1 January 2018, these contracts are in
the scope of the ECL requirements..

Loans and receivables.
Before 1 January 2018, loans and receivables were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments

that were nol quoted in an active markel. They were not entered into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale
and were not classified as. tradlng securities or designated-as investment securities available-for-sale, Such assets were

-carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses were recognised in prof it or loss when

the loans and receivabies were derecognised or impairéd, as well as-thraugh the amortisation process.
Avaifable-for-sale financial assets

Before 1 January 2018, available-for-sale’ financial assets. were ‘those, non- -derivative financial assets that were
designated as: available- for sale-or were not classified in any of the three preced:ng categories, After initial recognition

_available-for sale fnancnal assets were measured at fair value with gains or losses being recognised in other
‘comprehensive incomie until the investment was dérecognised of until the investment was determined to'be impaired at

which time the cumulative gairi or loss previously r_epbrt_ed in other comprehensive income was reclassified o the
statement of profit or logs: However, interest calculated using the effective interest method was recognised jn profit or
toss.
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Azer-Turk Bank Gpen Joint Stock Company Notes to'the 2018 financial statements

{(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies {continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Redlassification of financial assets and liahilities

From 1 January 2018, the Bank doesnot reclassify its-financial assets subsequent ta their nitial recognition, apart from

the éxceptional circumstances in which the Bank changes the business model for r managing financial assets. Financial

liabilities are never-reclassified.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash 6n hand, amounts dug from the CBAR, excluding obligatory reserves, and
amounts due from credit instifufions that mature within ninety days of the date of origipation and are free from contractual
encumbrances.

Borrowings

Issued’ financial. instruments or their components: are classified- as iabilities, where the substance of the; contractual
arrangement results in the Bank having an obligation either to deliver cash or anothe financial asset fo the holder, or to
satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of & fixed armnount of cash or another financial asset fora fixed number
of own equity instruments. ‘Such instruments include amounts. due to customers, amounts due to the government
organizations and amounts due to credit institutiops. After initiat recognition, borrowings.are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective intérést method. Gains and losses are recogriised in profitor joss when the borrowings
are dergcognised as well as through the amortization process.

Leases
Operating - Bank as lessee

Leases of assets: under which the risks and rewards of ownership are effectively retained by the lessor are classified as

-operating leases. Lease payments under an operating lease. are recognised as expenses on a straight-ling basis tver

the lease term and included into general and administrative expenses. -
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financiai assets and lizkilities are offset and the:net-amount is reported in the statement of financial position when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts -and there is an intention to-settle on-a net. basis, or to
realisg the asset-and settie the hahlllty mmultaneousiy The right of set-off must not be- contingent on a future event and
must be legally enforceable in all of the following circumstances:

> The normal course of business:
> The event of default; and
> The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity and all of the counterparties.

These conditions afe niot generally met in master netling agreements, and the related assets and liabilities are presented
grogs in the statement of financial position.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Bank seeks to restructure Joans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may involve
extending the payment arrangemeénts and the agreement of new loan conditions:

From 1 January 2018, the Bank derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been rehego'ti'atéd to the extent that, substantiaily, it becomes a new loan, with the difference recognised
as a derecognition gain or'loss, to the axtent that an impairment. loss has riot already been recorded. The newly
recogmsed loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement. purposes. Restructuring of |mpa|red loans does not
result in derecognltlon of financial instrument. When assessing whether or not to derecognise a loan to a customer,
amongst othiers, the Bank considers the following factors:

. Change in currency of the loan:.
> Change in.counterparty;
> If the modification is.such that the instrument would no longer meet the SPP| criterion.
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Azef-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to the 2018 finaricial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Renegotiated loans (continued)

If the modification does not result | in cash flows that.are substantially different, the modification does niot result in

‘derecoghition. Based on the- change in cash flows discounted atthe original EIR, the Bank records a modification gain

or loss, presented withifi interest incoime calculated using.EIR in'the staternent of profit or Iess to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Impairment of financial assets under IAS 39

Before 1 January 2018, the Bank assessed at each: reporting date whether’ there was any objective evidence that a
financial assetor a group of financial assets was impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets was deemed

to be impaired if, and only if, there was objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more svents that:had

occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event’) and that loss event (or-events) had an impact;

on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial asséts that could be reliably estimated,

Evidence of impairment may have. included indications that the borrower or-a group of borrowers-was experiencing

‘significant finaricial difficulty, default-or delinguency in interestor principal payments, the probability that they would enter

bankruptcy or otherfinancial reorganisatioh and where observable data indicated that there was a measurable decrease

in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic canditions thatcarrelated with. defaults. For

available-for-salé financial instruments, evidence of impairment also.included significant or prolonged-deciine in fair value

ofinvestment below it$ cost.

Thie Bank assessed whether objective evidence of impairment existed individuglly for financial assets that were
individually significant,or collectively for financial assets that were riot individually significant.

If there was-an objective evidence that an impairment loss had been incurred, the amount of the loss was measured as
thie difference-between the assets’ carryinig amount and.the present vaiue of estimated future cash flows {excluding future
expected credit iosses that have not yet been incurred), discounted using. original effective interest rate; or, for financiat
assets available-for-sale, as the difference between cost of investment and.its fair value. The carrying amount of the asset
was reduced and the amount of the loss was recognised in profit or 1oss. Interest income continued to be acerued on
the reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest rate of the asset; or, for financial assets available-
for-sale, using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose. of measuring the impairment
loss. Assets together with the associated allowance were written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral had been realised or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in & subsequent year, the amount of
the estimated impairment loss decreased because of an event occurring after the impairment had been recognised,
the previously recagnisaed 1mpalrment loss was reversed in statement of profit or loss, except for equity investments
available-for-sale, for which increase in their fair value after impairment were rec;egnlsed in other comprehensive incore.

For the purpose of a collective evaluation of impairment, financial assets were grouped on the basis of the Bank's intemal
credit-grading sysiem-that considered credit risk charactsristics such as -asset type, industry; geographical iocation,
collaterat type, past-due status and other relevant factors.

Future cash flows on a group of financial assets that were coliectively evaluated for zmpa:rment were estimated on
the basis of historical foss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those. in the group. Historical
loss experierice was adjusted on the basis of current-observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that had
not affected the years on which the historical loss expeiience was based and to rémove the effects' of conditions in
the historical period {hat did not exist currently. Estimates of changes in future cash flows reflected, and werg directionally
consistent with, changes in related-observable data from year to year (such as changes.in unemployment rates, property

prices, commadity: prices; payment status, or other factors that were indicative of incuired losses in the group or their

magnitude). The methodology and assumptions used for estimating future cash flows were reviewed regularly o reduce

any differences: bétween loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Information on impairment assessment under IFRS 9.is presented in Note 21.
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets

A financial asset: (cr. where. applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is

derecognised where:
» The rights o réceive cash flows from the asset have expired;

» The Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset, or retained the rightto receive cash flows:
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay ther in full withaut material delay to a third party uiider a
"pass-through” arrangement; and

> The Bank either (a) has transferred substantially all the tisks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks:and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Campany Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies {continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Where the Bank has transferred its rights fo receive cash flows from an asset and has neithertransferred nor retained
substantlally al) the risks and rewards of the-asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised {o the
extent of the:Bank’s continuing involvement ift the-asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
-the transferred assetis measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
con5|derat|0n that the Barik could be required to repay.

Where contiriuing mvoivement takes the form of & written and/or purchased option (including a cash:settled option or-
similar provision) on the transferred asset, the. extent of the Bank’s continuirig involvement is the amount of the.
transferred asset that the Bark may repurchase, except that in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled
option ar similar provision)-on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the Bank's continuing involvement is limited
to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise price. .

Wrife-off

From 1 January 2018, financial assets are written off either partially or in their enhrety only when the Bank has stopped

-plrsuing the recovery, If the amount to be written off is greater than the accumulated loss allowance, the difference is
first treated -as an-addition 10. the-allowance that is then applied-against the gross carrying amount. Any subsequent
recoveries are credited to credit loss expense, A write-off constitutés a derecognition event.

Financial liabilifies:
A financial liabifity is derecognised when the obfigation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another frem the sarhe lender on substantialy different terms, or
-the terms of an existing liability are. substantially modified, such-an exchange or modification is treated as a. derecognltlon
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference. in the: respective carrying amounts. is
recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
The current income tax expense is calculated in acco_rdance. wi'th the regulations of the Repubtic of Azerbaijan.

Deferred tax assets and liabifities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the liability methad. Deferred
income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising betwéen the tax bases of assets and lighilities and their
carrying values for financial reporting purposes, except where the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill.or of an‘asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combmatlon and, at the time of the transaction,
-affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is reccrded only to the extent that it is. probabie that taxable profit-will be available against which the
deductible temporary -differences can be utilised.. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are.
expected to.apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is setiled, based an tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Azerbaijan ajso has various operating taxes that are assessed on the Bank's activities. These faxes are included as a
companent of general and administrative expenses.

Current and deferred taxes are recogmsed in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in-other
.comprehgnsive. income or directly in equity, in which cass,: the ‘current and: deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are caryied at cost, excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and any accumutated impairment, Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of equipment when that-cost is incurred
if the recoghition criteria are met,

The-carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impaifméent when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrving value may not be recoverable.
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{Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting. policies {continued)
Property and equipment {continued)

Deprec;latmn of an asset begins when it is available for use:. Depreciation is calcuiated oh a straight-line basis over
the following estimated- useful lives:

Years
Furniture and fixtures 5-10
Computer -5
Vehicles 5
Other fixed assets 5-8
Leasehold Improvements 14

The asset's rasidual values, useful lives. and methods are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each financial

“year-end.

Costs related to repairs and renewals are charged when incurred and includéd in general and-administrative éxpenses;,
uniless they qualify for capitalization,

Intangible assets
Intarigible assets include computer software and licenses.

Intang:ble assets acquired separate[y are measured on initial recogmtlon at cost. The cost of mtang:ble assels acquired
in'a business combination is fair value as at the date. of acquisition, Followlng initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any acclmulated impairment losses, The .useful lives of intangible
assels are assessed to be either finite or indefinite, Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful
economic lives of ten years and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset. may
be impaired. Amortization periods and methods for intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are reviewed at least at

-egch financial year-end.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when.the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past gvents, and it
is probable that an outflow of resources .embodying economic berefits will be- requiired to settle the obllgatlon and a

reliable estimate of the amount of obligation can be made.

Retirement and other employee benefit obligations

The Bank does not have.dny pension afrangements separate from the State pension system of the Republic of
Azerbaijan, which reqwres current contributions. by the eniployer calculated as a perdentage of cufrent gross Salary

payments; such expense is charged inthe period the related salaries are earned. In‘additior; the Bank does not’ provide

post-retirement benefits to its employees.

Share capital

Share capital

Ordinary shares and non-redeemable preference shares with discretionary dlvldends are both classified as equity.
External costs directly atiributable to the issue of néw shares, other than on a business comblnatlon are -shiown as
a deduction from the-proceeds in -equity. Any excess of the fair valiie of consideration received over the par value of
shares. issued is recognised as-addifional paid-in capital.

Dividerids

Dividends-are recognised as:a liability and deducted from eqwty at the reporting date only if they are declared before or
onthe reporting date. Dividends arg disclosed when they are proposed before the repomng date or proposed or declared

‘after the reporting date but before'the financial statements are authorised for issue.
‘Contingencies

.Contingent liabitities  are not recognised In the statement of financial position but are disclosed Unless the possibiiity of

any outflow in sétflement is remote. A contlngent asset is not recognised in the statement of financial position but

disclosed when an‘inflow of economic benefits-is probable,
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(Figures. i tables:are in thousands of Azerbajjani manats)

Summary of accounting policies {continued)

Recognition of income and expenses

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economlc benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met béfore révenue is recognised:

Interest and simifar income and expense

From 1 January 2018, the Bank calculates interest income on debt financial assets measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCI by applying the EIR io-the gross carrying amount of financial assets. other than creditimpaired assets (before
1:January 2018: by applying EIR to the amortized costof financial assets). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or recelpts through the expected fife of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where

-appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the finaricial asset or financial Hability. The calculation takes-into account all

contractual terms of the financial instrument {for- exam_ple ‘prepayment options) and |ncludes_ any fees or incremental
costs that are direcily attributable to the instrument.and are an integral part-of the effective interest rate, but not future
credit losses. The carrying amount-of the financial asset or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank yevises its estimates

-of payments or recéipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated based on. the onginal effective interest rate and

the change in carrying amount is recorded as interest revenue or expense.

When a-financizl asset becomes credit-impaired, the Bank calculates interest revenue by applying the effective interest
rate'to the net amortised cost of the-financial asset. ¥ the financial assets cures-and is no longer credit-impaired, the Bank
reverts to-calculating interest revenue on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financiai assets, the Bank calculates interest income by calculating
the credit-adjusted EIR ‘and applying that rate to-the amortised cost of the asset. The credit-adjusted EIR is the-interest
rate that, at original recognition, discounts the estimated future cash ﬂOWS (including credit iosses) to the amortised cost
of the POC] assets.

Interest revenue on all financial assets at FVPL Is recognised using the contractudl interest rate in *Cther interest

revenue” in the statement of profit or loss.

Fees and commissions.

The Bank: earns fee and commission income from a diverse range. of services it provides to its customers. Fee income
can be divided info the following two categories:

- Income earmed from the provision of seivice is recognized as reventie as the service are provided (for example,
servicing plastic card operations, settlement operations, cash operations and othiérs);

- income which forms.an integral pait of the effective interest fate of a financial lnstrument is recognized ‘as an
adjustiment to the effective interest rate. and recorded in ‘interést income’.

Dividepd income

Revenue is recognized when the Bank's right to receive the payment is established.

Foreign currency translation

‘The financial statements. are presented in Azerbaijani mariat, which is the Bank's functional and presentation currency.
“Transaciions. in fereign currencies are initially recorded in thé functionial currency, converted at the raté of exchange

ruling at the date of the transaction. Monétary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at

-the furictional currency rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Gainis and losses resulting from the translation of

foréign currency transactions ‘are recagnised in the statefent of profit or loss s net gains (losses) from foreign currency
translation differences. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost In a foreigri currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rafes at the date when the fair value was determined.

Differences between the contractual exchange rate of a.transaction in a foreign currency-and the CBAR exchange rate
on the date of the transaction are included in gains from dealing operations.

The Bank used the following official éxchange rates at 31 December in'the preparation of these financial statéments:

2018 2017
1 US dollar AZN 1.7000 AZN1.7001
1 euro AZN 1.9468 AZN 2.0307
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(Figures in-tables are.inf thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accounting policies (continued)
Standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued, but riot yet effective, up-to.the: date of issiiancé of the Bank's financial
statements are disclosed below. The Bank intends to adopt thiese standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces 1AS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
Contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating t eases - Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease, IFRS 16 sets-out the principles far the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessdes to-account for all leases under a single on-balance shieet model similar to the accounting
for finance leases under I1AS 17, The standard includes two. recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of fow-value'
assets and shortlerm leases (i.e., leases with a tease-tefm of 12 months or less}). Atthe commencement date of 3 lease,
a lessee will recognise a liability to make Jease payments (i.e., the leasé liability) and an asset representing the right to

use the underlying asset during the jease term (i-e., the right-of-use asset). Léssees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expanse on the lease fiability and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required totemeasure the lease iiability upon the oocurmence.of certain events (e.g,, a change in the
lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used {6 deterrnifie those
payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the: remeasurement of the lease liability.as an adjustmerit
to the right-of-use asset '

Lessor accounting underIFRS 1635 su bstantially unchanged from today's accounting. under IAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in 1AS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases:
operating and finance leases.

IFRS 16; which is effective for annual periads beginning on of after 1 January 2019; requires lessees and lessors to

‘make - more éxtensive disclosures than under IAS 17..

The:Barik plans to adopt !FRS.'1ﬁ_r_etro_specti'vely with the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 recognised at the
date of initial application. The Bank will elect to apply'the staridard to contracts that wera previously identified as leases

applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Bank will therefore not apply the standard to° coniracts that were not previously
identified as containing @lzase applying IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

The Bank will elect to use the éxemptions proposed by the standard on lease coritracis for which the iease terms ends
within 12 months as at'the date of nitia} application, and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value.
The-Bank has not yet determined the effectthe standard. will have ori its financia! statements,

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Trealment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting. for income taxés when tax reatments. involve uncertainty that affects
the application of IAS 1 2 arid does hot apply to 1axes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12, rior does itspecifically inclide
requirements relating to interest-and penalties associated with uncertain-tax treatments: The Interpretation speacifically

addresses the following:

- Whether an entity considers uncertain tax tréatments separately;

> The assumptions ah éntity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;

- How an enti.ty determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, Unused tax losses; unused tax credits and taxrates:
> How an entity considers changes in faéts and circumstarnces.

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncerain tax treatment separately or together with one or more
other uncertain tax treatments, The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty should be foliowed..
The interpretation is effective for annual reporting periods beginning en of after 1. January 2019, but certain transition
reliefs are available. The Bank will apply the interpretation from its effective date. Sincs the Bank operates in a complex
tax environment, -applying the fhterpretation may affect ifs financial statements. In ‘addition, the Bark may need to
establish processes and procedures to obtain information that is. necessary ta apply the Interpretation on ‘atimely basis.
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(Figures ih tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Summary of accountirg policies {continued)
Standards and interpretations issued but notyet effective (continued)
Amendments to IFRS.9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under|FRS 9, a debtinstrument can be measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
provided that the contractual cashflows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest art the principal amount cutstanding’
{the SPPI criterion} and the instrument is held. within the appropriate ‘business model for that classification. The
amendments to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI criterion regardless-of the event or circumstance.
that causes the: early termination of the contract and irrespective- of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract, '

The amendments sh_ould be .applied retrospectively and are effective from 1 January 2019, with earlier application
permitted. These amendments have ng impact on the financial statements of the. Bank.

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle (issued ir December 2017)

These improvemenits include:

IAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that the‘income tax consequences of dividends are linked mare directly to past transactions or -
events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity recognises the incometax
consequences of dividends in profit orloss, other comiprehensive income or equity according to-where the entity originally-
recognised those past transactions or events.

An entity applies those .amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after % January 2019, with early
application is permitted. When an entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income {ax consequences

-of dividends recognised on or after the beginning.of the earliest comparative period: Since the Bank's current practice is

in line with these améndments, the Bank does not expect any effect on its financial statemenis.

Significant accounting judgments and estimates

In the process of applying the Bank's accounting peficies, management has used its judgments and made estimates in
determining the amounts recognised in the. financial statements. The most significant use -of judgments and estimates
are as follows:

Fair value of financial instruments

Where the fair values.of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position cannct ba
derived from active markets, they are determined usifig & variety of valuation technigues that include the use of
mathematical madels. The input to these modsals is taken from observable markets where:possible, but where this is not
feasible; a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Additional details are provided in Note 22.

Impairment losses on financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses both under IFRS 9 and IAS 39 across all categoriés of finaricial assets requires:
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash fiows and. collateral values when
determining impairment lossés and the assessmant of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by
a number of factors, changes in- which ‘can result:in different levels of allowances. The Bank's ECL calculations are

‘outputs of complex models. with.a number of underlying -assumptions regarding the choice of varigbie inputs and their

interdependerniciés. Elements of the EGL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

- The Bank's criteria for agsessing i there has been a significant incréase in credit risk .and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a LTEGL basis and the guaiitative assessment;

» The segmentation q’f-ﬂnanc_iai assets when their ECL is assessed on a &ollective basis;

> Development of ECL models, includirig the vatious formulag and the choice of inputs;

» Determination of asscciations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as unemployment

levels and coliateral values, and the effect on PDs, EADs and LGDs:

[ Selettion of 'f'onfva'rd-looking macrogconomic scenarios and their probability- weightinigs, to derive the econoric
inputs into the ECL models;

More details are provided in Notes 8 and 21.
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Azer-Tutk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures intables are in.thousands.of A zerhaijjani manats)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash.and cash equivalents compiise:

2018 2097
Cash oh hand 18,695 31,834
Current accounts with the CBAR 11,096 47,693
Current accounts with other banks 22,246 8,230
Cash in transit _ 33,250 4 065
Time deposits with the CBAR up to 90 days. 35,505 75,784
Time deposits with credit institutions up to 90 days - 1.700
Cash and cash equivalents 120,792 . 170,306

Current accourits with other banks consist of correspondent account.b_alances with resident and non-resident banks in
the amount of AZN 118 thousand (2017 AZN 217 thousand) and-AZN 22,128 thousand (2017: AZN 9,013 thousand),
respectively,

As-at 31 December 2017, time deposits with credit institutions up to 90 days consist of interest bearing short-term deposit
placed in one non-resident bank in the. amount of AZN 1,700 thausand.

Al balances of cash equivalents are allocated to- Stage 1. As at 1 January.and 31 December 2018 ECL relating to cash
and cash equivalents rounds to zera,
Amounts due from credit institutions

Amounts due from credit institutions comprise:

2018 2017
Time deposits for more than 90 days 10,318 18,780
Blocked accounts with credit institutitns 3,362 5,788
Obligatory reserve with the CBAR 1,351 1,493
Loans to-cradit institutions _ 725 -
Amounts due from credit institutions 15,746 26,061

As at 31 December 2018, time depdsits for more than 80 days include interest bearing time deposits in the amount of
AZN 1,714 thousand (2017: nil) and AZN 8,604 thousand (2017:.AZN 18,780 thousand) piaced in one resident credit
institution {2017: nil) and in two non-resident credit institutions (2017 two non-resident credit ins’titutidns_), respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, blocked accounts with credit institutions represented funds blocked by one {2017 two)

‘non-resident credit institutions. against letters: of guarantee (2017: letters of credit) issued 1o sixtaen customers {2017:

gight custemers).

Credit institutions are required to maintain a non-intérest earning cash deposit (obligatory reserve) with the CBAR at0.5%.
{2017: 0.5%) of the previous month average balances in AZN and 1% (2017: 1%) of the previous month average balances
in foreign currencies réspectively, attracted from customers by the credit-institution. The Bark's ability to withdraw such.
deposit i restricted by statutory legistation.

Loans to credit institutions represerit two loans issued to two resident non-bank credit institutions.

All'balances of due from credit institutionis are aliccated to Stage 1. As-at 1 January and 31 December 2018 EGL relating
to amounts due from credit institutions rounds to zero.
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Azer-Turk Bank Opén Joint Stock Company

Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures in fables are in thousands of Azerbajjani manats)

Loans to customers

Loans to customers comprise:

2018 2017
Loans to individuals-consumer 51,271 24,231
Corporate loans 48 442 -33,129
Loans to individuals-mortgage 48,239 26,608
Loans to governmient owned entities 27,818 43,051
Loans to individuals-entrepreneurship 6,116 10,178.
Gross loans to customers at amortised cost 181,886 137,195
Less: allowance for impairment (17,088) (20,465)
Loans to customers at amortised cost. 164,798 118,730
Corporate loans _ 528 X
Loans to customers at FYPL 528 X
Loans to customers 165,326 116,730,

Loans to customers at FVPL

Loans to customers at FVPL are mostly represented by project financing loans that are economically or contractually

fon-recourse. Information on fair vatue measurement of Loans to customers at FVPL is presented in Note 22.
Allowance for impairment of loans to customers at amortised cost

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying value and corresponding ECL in relation to individuals-consumer- loans
during the year ended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

Loans to individuals-consimer .Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2018 21,132 470 2,851 24,453
New assets originated or purchased 35,620 - - 35,620
Assets repaid (7,857} (377) (1,391). {9,425}
Transfers to Stage 1 125 (62) (63) -
Transfers-to Stage 2 {564) 569 (&) -
Transfers to Stage 3 (360) (32} 392 -
Unwinding of discount - - 51 51
Recoveries - - 598 596
Amounts writtery off = - (24) (24)
At 31 December 2018 48,296 568 2,407 51,21
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Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to the 2078 financial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousandls of Azerbaijani manats)

Loans to customers (continued)

Allowance for impairment of Joans to customers at amortised cost {continued)

Loans to individuals-consumer Stage 1 Stage 2 Sfage 3 Total
ECL as.at 1 January 2018 {413) (67} {1,857) {2,337}
New assets originated or purchased 217y - = (217}
Assets repaid 168 -38 1,174 1,378
Transfers to Stage 1 (48) 20 28 -
Transfers to Stage 2 36 41 5 -
Transfers to Stage 3 81 15 (96) -
Impact an period end ECL. of exposures ]

transferred between stages during the period 47 (85) (78) {116}
Urniwinding of discount (recognised in intérest '

revenise) = - {51) (51)
Changes to models and inputs used

for ECL calculations 106 - (29) 77
Recoveries - - (596) (598)
Amounts written off - - 24 24
At 31 December 2018 {242) (120) (1,476) (1,838)

An.analysis of changes irvthe gross carrying value and corresponding ECL in'relatién to corperate loans during the year
ended 31 Decembet 2018 isas follaws:

Corporate loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross -carrying value as at 1 January 2018 12,653 3,963 16,201 32,817
New assets’ ariginated or purchased 26,483 - - 26,483
Assets repaid (7,590) (1,195} (2,065) (10,850)
Transfers to Stage 1 2,217 (2,217) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - 248 (248) -
Transfers to Stage 3 -~ (551} 551 -
Unwinding of discount - - 419 419
Recoveries - ~ - -
Amounts written off - - {427) (427)
At-31 December 2018 33,763 _ 248 14,431 - 48,442
Corporate loans Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL as at 1 January 2018 {1,299) {1,059) (10,699) (13,057)
New assets originated or purchased (2,031 - = (2,031
Assets repaid 771 409 1,128 2,308
Transfers to Stage 1 (922} 922 - -
Transfers to-Stage 2 -~ (165) 165 -
Transfers o Stage 3 - 130 (130 -
Impact on-period end ECL of exposures

trangferred between stages durlng the period 838 (263) 278 853
Unwinding of discount. {recognised in interest

revenue) - - (419) (419)
Changes te models and inputs used _

for ECL calculations. 220 - - 220
Recoveries _ - - - -
Amounts written off - - 427 427
At 31 December 2018 (2,423) (28) (9,250 ( 11,699)
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Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Campany

Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

l.oans to customers (continued)

Allowance for impairinent of loans to customers at amortised cost (continued)

An analysis of changes in the gross carrying value dnd carresponding ECL in relation fo

during the year.ended 31 December 2018 is-as follows:

loans individuals-mortgage

Loans to individuals-mortgage Stage-1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2018 26,611 - - 26,611
New-assets originated or purchased 22,731 - = 22,731
Assets repaid ' (1,103 - - {1,103)
Transfers to-Stage 1 |- - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 (199) 199 - =
Transfers to Stage 3 (61) - 81 -
Unwinding of discount - - - -
Recoveries = - - -
Amounts written- off - - - -
At 31 December 2018 47,979 198 61 48,239
Loans to individuals-morigage -Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL as.at 1 January 2018 {252) - - {252)
New assets originated orpurchased (107) - - (107)
Assets repaid 10 - = 10
Transfers to Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 2 (2) N -
Transfers to- Stage 3 1 - ()] -
Impact on period end ECL of exposures _

transferred between stages. during the period. - 61) {20} (81)
Unwinding of discount {(recoghised in interest

revenue) - - - -
Changes to models and inputs used _

for ECL calcuiations 121 - - 121
Recoveries - - - -
Amounts written off - - - -
At 31 December 2018 {225) {63) {21) {309)

entiies during the yearended 31 December 2018 is as follows:

~An analysis of changes in the gross' cafrying value and corresponding ECL ik relation to loans to government owned

Loans to government owned entities Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2018 41,102 - 2,009 43111
New assets originated or purchased _ - - - -
Assels repaid (13,284) - (1,678) (14,962)
Transfers-to Stage 1 - - - . -
Transfers o Stage 2 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 -~ - - -
Unwinding of disceunt - - = -
Recoveries - - - -
Arounis written off - - (331). (331)
At 31 December 2018 27,818 - - 27,818
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Azér-Turk Bank Qpen- Joint Stock Company

Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Loans to customers (continued)

Allowance for impairment of loans to customers at amortised cost {continued)

Loars to government owned entities

Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

ECL as at 1 January 2018

New assets originated or purchased

Assets repaid

Transfers to Stage 1

Transfers fo Stage 2

Transfers to Stage 3

Impact on perigd end ECL of exposures
fransferfed between stages during the period

Unwinding of discount (recognised in interest
revenue)

Changes to models and inputs used
for ECL calctiiations

Recoveries

Amounts written off

At 31 Decémber 2018

(86)

59.

9

(1, aza)

1 497

331

{1,914)

1,556

9

331

{18)

{18)

An- analysis of changes in the gross carrying value and corresponding EGL in relation to loans mdwlduals-
entrepreneurship during the year ended 31 December 2018'is as follows:

_Loans to individuals-entrepreneurship Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total’
Gross carrying value as at 1 January 2018 3,529 1,042 5,972 10,543
New assets originated ot purchased 693 - - 693
Assets repaid (3,009} 831 {(1,339) {5,179)
Transfers to Stage 1 i 159 (159) - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - =
Transfers'to Stage 3 (1 39}' - 139 -
Unwinding of discount - 110 110
Recoveries - - - -
Amounts written off - - (51} {51)
At 31 December 2018 1,233 52 4,831 6,116
Loans ‘to individuals-entrepreneurship Stage-1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL as at.t January 2018 (282) {217) {3,872) {4,371)
New asset§ originated or purchased (43) - = (43)
Assels repdid 254 176 826 1,256
Transfers to Stage 1 {42) 42 - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 3 24 = (24) -
Impact on pericd gnd ECL.of exposurés

transferred between stages during the period 21 {14) {28) {21)
Unwinding of discount (recognised in interest ' C o

revenue) - - (110) {110)
Changes to models and inputs used : '

far ECL. calculations 6 8 - 14
Recoveries - - - -

-Amounts: written off - - 51 31
At 31 December 2018 (62) {5) {3,157) (3,224)

23




“Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Cempany Notés to the 2018 finaricial statements

(Figures in tables.are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

L.oans to customers {continued)
Allowance for impairment of loans to customers at amortised cost (continued)

A reconciliation of the allowance forimpairment of Ioans to customers by class during the year ended 31 Décember 2017
is as follows:

Loans to Loans to
government Loans'fo individudls- Loansto
- owned Corporate individuals- entrepreneur individuals- _
entities Joans consumer ship. mortgage Total.
At 1 January 2017 {1,149) (13,042) (7,161} (6,421) (150) {27,623)
Reversal of allowance/(charge) i _ _ _ _ _
for the year 489 (5:160) 2,815 2,087 (296) (65)
Recovery, - - (227} - - (227).
Amounts written off - 4,248 2896 308 - 7,450
At 31 December 2017 (660} (13,953) {1,677} {3,729) {446) (20,465}
Individual impairment - (8,802) - (2,007) - (10,899)
Collective impairment (660) (5.151) {1.677) (1:632) (448) (9,566)
(680) {13:953) {1,677} (3,729) - (446) = (20,465)
Gross amount of loans, )
individuatly determined to he
impaired, before deducting
any individually assessed .
impairment allowance — 13,474 » 2,969 _ = . 16443

Collateral and other credit enhancements

The amount and typeof collateral réquired depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the' counterparty. Guidelines
are implemented regarding the acceptability of types of collateral and valuation parameters.

“The main types of collateral cbtained are as follows:

- For corporate and governmental lending, charges over real estate properties and blocked cash;

- Forretail lending, mortgages over residential properties:

Management monitors the market value of collateral and requests additional collateral in accordance with the underlying
agreement during ifs review of the adequacy of the allowarce for loan impairment. As at 31 December 2018, maximum

exposure-of collateralized joans in Stage 3 amounted to AZN 19,715 for which ECL of AZN 12,244 was recognized. If
these loans were not collateralized, ECL amount for these leans would be AZN 17,793,

Concentration of loans to customers

Loans are made principally in the following ind'ust_ry sectors;

2018 2017
Individuals 99,510 50,835
Transport 27,780 33,112
Qil anid gas 10,727 L -
Trading enterprises 8,367 8,255
Manufacturing 7,257 ‘8,376
Agriculture @nd food processing 7,397 7,623
Metallurgy ' 5,338 5743
Telecommunication 4,680 4,082
Ot_h_er 11,358 13,168
Loans to customers, gross 182,414 137,185

Corporate loan granted to an -enfity operating in transport sector amounting to AZN 26,334 thousand (2017
AZN 36,350 thousand) was provided by the funds received from the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Azerbaijan.

As'at 31 December 2018, the Bank had a concentration of loans represerted by AZN 48,806 thousand or 27% of gross
‘Joan portfolio (2017;. AZN 58, {018 thousand or 42%) due from ten: (2017 ten) largest borrowers of the Bank. An gllowance
-of AZN 5,451 thousand (2017: AZN 5,978 thousand) was recognized against these foans.
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Bzer-Turk Bank Operr.Joint Stock Company

Notes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azérbaijani manats)

Investment securities

investment securities comprises:

Debt securities at FVOC|
Notes issued by the CBAR _
Notes issued by the Ministry of Finance of the Repubiic of Azerbaijan

Equity securities at FVOC|
Corporate.shares

Total investment securitics

Investment securities'-_available-For-sale
Corporate bends
Corporate shares

Total investment securities available-for-sale

2018 2017

47,470
4,312

51,782

45

45

xxix x|

51,827

X 4,008
X 45

X 4,053

All balances.of investment securities are aliocated to Stage 1. As at 1 January and 31 December 2018 ECL relating to

investment securities rounds to zero,

Property and. equipment
Thie movements in property and equipment were as follows:

Furnijture and’

Otherfixed  Leasehold

fixtures Computer ‘Vehicles assets improvements Total
Cost ) ]
31 December 2016 3,599 3,034 959 219 2,776 10,587
Addifieng 54 157 - 30 25 286
Disposals {(22) - - - - (22
31 December 2017 3,631 3,19 ' 959 249 2,801 10,831
Additions -2_26__ 409 38 1__6 209 898
Disposals. {81) (103} = (38) _- {222)
31 December 2018 3,776 3,497 997 227 3,010 11,507
Accumulated depreciation _
31 December 2016 {1,102} {943) (394) (60) {254) {2,753)
Depreciation‘charge. (688} (558) (183) (44) 1195} {1,668)
Disposals ' 11 - - - - 41
31 December 2017 (1,779) {1,501} (577) (104 {449). (4,410}
Depreciation charge (672) (577) (170} {45) (206} {1,670)
Disposals: 73 100 - 28 - 199
31 December 2018° {2,378) (1,978} (747) (128) {655} (5,881)
Néet book valug’
31 December 2016 2,497 2,091 565 159 2,522 7,834
31 Decermber 2017 1,852 1,690 382 145. 2,352 6,421
31 December 2018 1,398 1,519 250 104 2,355 5,626

As at 31 December 2018, property and equipment amounting to AZN 791 thousand (2017: AZN 795 thousand) weré fully

depreciated.
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Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Comparty Nutes to the 2018 financial statements

(Figures'in tables are.in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

intan_g'ible assets

The movements in intangible assets were as follows:

Licenses Computer software Total
Cost
31 December 2016 1',Q2_1 2,036 3,057
Additions _ 71 103 174
31 December 2017 1,092 2,139 3,231
Additions 106 780 886
Disposals (110) @5 (135)
31 Decembar 2018 _ 1,088 -2,894 3,982
Accumulated amortization )
31 Décember 2016 (260) (86) (346)
Amortization charge. {103) (212 (315)
31 December 2017 {363) (298) (661)
Amortization charge (98) (240 (338)
Disposal 82 11 93
31 December 2018 {379) (527) -{806)
Net hook value. _
31 December 2016 781 1,950 2,711
31 December 2017 _ 729 1,841 2,570
31.December 2018 709 2367 3,076
Taxation
The corporate income tax expense comprises:
2018 2017

Current tax charge {7086) (501}
Deferred tax-(charge)/credit -~ origination and reversaj of temporary N

differences (630) 103
Less: deferred tax recognised in other comprehensive.income 10 -
Income tax expense (1,326} {398)

Deferred tax related to items charged or credited to other comprehensive income during the year is as follows:
2018 2017
Nét gains on debt instriments-designated at FVOCI (10 X

Income tax charged to other comprehensive income (10 X

Theeffective income tax rate differs from the statutory income tex rates. A reconciliation of the income tax charge based
‘on statutory rates with actual is as follows:

2018 2017

Praofit before tax 3,440 1,326
Statutory tax rate 20% 20%
Theoretical ingome tax expense at the statutory rate (688). {265)
Tax effect.of non-deductible expenses (182) {163)
Prior yéartax actualization (456} -
Other . - 30
Income tax charge {1,326} {398)
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-Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company

MNotes 1o the 2018 financial statements.

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Taxation {continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and their movements for the respective years comprise:

Origination. and
reversal of temporary

‘Originatior and
reversal of temporary

differences differenices
in the In other Effect of in the in other
Statement compre- adopticn of statement compgre-
of profitor hensive _ IFRS 8 .ofprofitor hensive -
) 2016 loss incorme 2017 {Note 3) l0ss intome 2018
Tax effect of deductible temporary
difforences - _ _ _
Loang to.customers 761 (134) - 627 (7 {532} - 78
Investment securities 50 27 - 77 - {30} - 47
Other Fabilities 668 (302) - 366 181 (@4} - 463
Other assets - g - 5 = 17 - 22
Defarred tax assets 1479 (404} - 1,075 164 {629} = 610
Tax effect of taxable termporary
dlfferences ' '

Cash and cashi equivdlents (203) 173 - (30) - 4 - (25)
Amounts due from credif instilulions. {2313 195 - {35) - 38 - -
-Amourit due to customers {215) {63) - {278) - {28} - {308)
Loante customers - - - - - (43} - 43
Investment securities - - - - - {10) (10)
Intangible assels (78} 20 - {59) - {22} - 81y
Propery and equipment {264} 72 -~ {192) - 94 - {93)
‘Other assets (218) 110 - (109} - {37) . {146)
Deferred tax liabilities {1:.211} 507 - (*04) - 9 (19} (705)
Nat deferred tax assetsf{liabilities} 268 103 — 371 164 {620} (e [95)

Credit loss expense

The table.below shows the ECL charges ori financial instruments récorded in the statement of profit or loss for the year

ended 31 December2018:

Note. Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Loans to customers at amortised cost (638) 1,129 4,695 5,186
Credit loss on financial assets {638} 1,129 4,695 5,186
Financial guarantees’ 17 482 = 391 873
Letter of credits 17 19 - - 19
Credit related commitments 501 - 3N 892
Provisiéns for guarantegs and commitmients are recorded in other fiabilities.
Other assets and liabilities
Other assets comprise:

2018 2017

Qther financial assets _ _
Settlements on money transfers 1,139 -2_28
Settlements on operafions with plastic:-cards 155 10
Total other financial assets 1,294 238
Other non-findncial assets
Repossessed coliaterals . B _ N 1,502 1,089
Prepayments for acquisition of property, equipment and intangible assets 905 761
Settlement with government budget - 677
Deferred expenses 279 :-.93
Total other non-financial assets 2,686 2,630
Other asséts 3,980 2,868
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Azer-Turk Bark Ogen Joint Stock Company Notes to-the 2018 finaricial statements

(Figures in tables are in thousands of Azerbaljani manats)

Other assets and liabilities (continued)

All balances of other assets are aliocated to Stage 1. As-at 1 January and 31 December 2018 ECL relafing to other

‘assets rounds to.zero.

Other habilities comprise:

2018 2017

Other financial liabilities

Funds in settlement 1,953 1,597
Dividends payable - 51
Total other financial liabilities 1,953 1,648
Other non-financial liabilities

Accrued expenses 378 376
Payable to employees 374 307
Pravision for contingent liabilities (Note 17) 1,282 1,280
Deterred income 277 189
Settlements with government budgst 248 -
Totai other hon-financial tiabilities 2,569 2,152
Other liabilities 4,522 "3,800

Amounts due to credit institutions and government organizations

Amaounts due-to credit institutions and government orgahizations comprise:

2018 2017
Time deposits and loans 26,421 36,437
Amounts die to the Azerbaijan Mortgage Fund 43,388 24,864
Current-accounts: - o _ 17,490 9,567
Loans received from the National Fund for Support of Entrepreneurship 2,607 3,537
Blocked accounts 431 7
Amounts due to credit institutions and government organizations 90,337 74,476
Held as security against jetters of guarantee. (Note, 17) _ 91 71
Held as security against loans issued to- credit institutions (Note 6) 340 =

As at 31 December 2018, the Bank had fime deposit placed by the Ministry of Finance in the amount of
AZN 26,421 thousand (2017; AZN 36437 thousand) that matures during 2021 and bears interest rate of
monthly LIBOR plus-1.75% p.a. The fund was used for refinancing loan to one refated party. company. The loan issusd
maturas in 2021 and bears interest rate monthly LIBOR plus 2% p.a.

On 23 Decerriber 2010, the Bank signed a credit agreement with the National Fund for Support of Entrepreneurship, a
program under-the Ministry of Econiomic Developiment of the Republic of Azerbaijan, for finanging of smail and medium
‘sizad enterprises. Underthijsj_program. funds are made available to the Bank at an interest rate of 1% p.a. 2017 1% p.a.)
which matures through 2019-2023 (2017: 2018-2021). The Bank uses these funds fo issue loans to eligible borrowers at
rate of 8% p.a.

‘On 20 December 2008, the Bank signed a credit agreement with the Azerbaijan Mortgage Fund, a program under the:
CBAR, for granting long term mortgage loans 1o individuals, Under this program, funds are made available to the Bank:
at an interest rate of 1-4% p.a. (2017: 1-4% p.a.) which matures through in 2018-2048 (2017: 2019-2047), The Bank

relends these funds to eligible borrowers .at rates riat higher than 8.0% p.a.
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Azer-Turk Bank Open Joint Stock Company Notes to the 2018 financial statements.

(Figures-in tables are in thousands of Azerbaijani manats)

Amounts due to customers.

The.amounts dueto customers include the following:

2018 2017
Current accounts » 144,508 127,705
Time deposits 75,500 72,879
Amounts due to customers. - 220,008 200,584
Held as security against {etters of guarantee (Note 17) 890 268
Held as.security against loans to customers 13,297 852

At-31 Decerber 2018, the Bank had amounts due to 10 (2017 10)-largest customers with ‘aggregate balance of
AZN 112,127 thousand or.51% of total amounts. due to customers (2017: AZN 103,251 thousand or 51%).

‘Gustomer accourits by'e'cono_mic sectors are as follows:

2018 2017
Individuals 113,414 77,000
Insurance companies and other non-bank financial institutions 50,504 30,084
State and public organizations ' 18,892 25,914
Trade and services 15,845 15,181
Manufacturing 8,907 525
Construction 7,451 49,156
Transportation and-communication 2,724 1,892
Agriculture 943 83
Other 1,328 772
Amounts due to customers 220,008 200,584

Equity
Movements in ordinary shares outstanding, issued and fully paid were as follows:

Nominal amount

Number.of Jper ardinary share, Tota/,
ordinary shares _ Azerbaijani manat Azerbaijani manat
31 December 2016 50,000,000. 1 50,000,000
Increase in share capital . - -
31 December 2017 50,000,000 1 50,000,000
Increase in-share-capital = = -
31 December 2018 50,000,000 1 50,000,000:

The share capital of the Bank was contributed by shareholders in Azerbaijani manat and they are entitled to dividends
and any capital distribution-in Azerbaijani manat,

According 10 the decision of the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 4 May 2017, the Bank dsclared dividends in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2016, totalling AZN 1,900 thousand (including 10% withholding tax to be paid
on behalf of shareholders) on ordinary shares. The dividends were fully paid during 2017.

According fo the decision of the.General Sharehalders” Meeting held on 27 June 2018, the Bank declared dividends in
respect of the year ended 31 December.2017, totalling AZN-928 thousand (including 10% withholding fax to be paid on

behalf of shareholders) on ordinary shares. The dividends were fully paid during 2018,
Fair value reserve

This reserve records fair value changes-on available-for-sale investments (before 1 January 2018) and financial assets
at:FVOCI (after 1 January 2018).
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Commitment and contingencies.
Operating environment

Azerbaijan continues econormic reforms and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks. The future stability
of the Azerbaijan economy is largely dependent upon these reforms and the effectivenéss of economic, financial and
monetary measures undertaken by the government as well as crude oil prices and stability- of Azerbaijani manat.

The Azerbaijan economy has been negatively impacted by decline of oil prices and devaluation aof Azerbaljani manat
against USD during 2015. This resulted in reduced access to capital, a higher cost of capital, inflation and uncertainty
regarding economic growth.

In response to these challenges, Azerbaijani government arindunced plans to accelerate reforms and support to financial
system. On 6 December 2016  President of the Republic of Azerbaijan approved “Strategic road maps for the national
gconomy and main economic sectors of Azerbaijan”. The road maps cover 2016-2020 development strategy, long-term
outlook up to 2025 and vision beyond 2025 ' '

Furthermore, during 2018 the government continued tight monetary policy as well as allocated foreign currency resources.
which stabilized Azerbaifani manat. During 2018, CBAR graduaily reduced refinancing rate fiom 15% to 9.75% with aim
of normalising monetary policy. '

The Bank's managemert is mohitoring economic developments in the current environment and taking precautionary
measures it considered necessary in-order to: support the. sustainability and development of the -Bank's Business ‘in

-the fargseeable future,

Legal

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank is ‘subject to legal actions:and complaints. Management believes that the
ultimate liabifity, if any, arising from such actions or complaints will not have ‘a'materia adverse effect on the financial
condition or the resuilts of future operations of the Bank.

‘Taxation

Tax legislation in Azerba'ijan is subject to varying interpretations, and changes' can occur frequently. Management's
interprétation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and activity of the Bank may be challenged by thé relevant

-authorities. Recent events within the Republic of Azérbaijan suggest that the tax authorities may be taking a more

assertive position in their interpretation and appfication of this legislation and assessments: It is therefore possible that
transactions and activities of the Bank that have not been chailenged in the past may be challenged at'any time.in the
future. As a result, significant additional taxes, penalties and interest may be assessed by the relevant autherities.
Fiscal periods remain open and subject to review by the tax authorities for a period of three calendar years immediately
preceding the year in which the decision to conduct a tax review is taken. The last tax audit covered $econd quarter of
2015 and third. quartér of 2018.

Management's interpretation of the relevant legislation as at 31 December 2018 is appropriate and the Bank's tax,
currency-and customs positions will be sustained.

Insurance
The Bank has not currently obtained insurance coverage related to liabilities arising. from errors or omissions.
Compliance with CBAR ratios

CBAR requires. banks to. maintain certain prudential ratics computéd based on statutory financial statéments, As at

31 December 2018, the Bank was in compliance with these ratios.

Financial commitments and contingencies

The Bank provides guarantees and letters of credit to customers with primary purposé of ensuring that funds are available
to a customer as required. Guarantees and standby letters of credit represent irevocahle assufances. that the Bank will
make payments in the évént that a customer cannot meet its obligations to third parties. Documentary and commercial
letters of credit, which are written undentakings by the Bank ofi behalf of a customer authorizing a third parly fo draw
drafts on the Bank up to a stipulated amount. under specific terms. and coniditions, are collatéralized by the undetlying,
shipments of goods, to which-they relate, or cash deposits and, therefore, carry less risk than a direct borrowing.
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Commitment and contingencies (continued)

Financial commitments and contingencies (continued)

The undrawn loan co_mmit'ment:agreements stipulate the right of the Bank to unilaterally withdraw from the agreemenit
should any conditions unfavourabie to the Bank arise, including change of the refinance rate, infiation, exchange rates

and others.

As at 31 December, the Bank's financial commitments and-contingencies comprised the fellowing:

2018 27
Credit related commitments
Guarantees 36,032 23,960
Undrawn loan commitments 14,953 16,833
Letters of ciedit o 272 158
Less — provisions for ECL for credit related commitments (1,292) (1,280}
Less - deposits held as secuiity against létters of guarantee (Note 14, 15) (981) {339)
' 48,984 39,332
Operating lease commitments
Not later than 1 year 1,624 192
Later than 1 year but no later than 5 years 602 -
' 1,626 192
Commitments and contingencies 50,610 39,524

An analysis of changes in the ECLs during the year ended 31 December 2018 is as foliows:

Financial guarantees, Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECLs as at 1 January 2018 (1,770 - (391) (2,161)
New exposures - {876) - - (876)
Exposures derecognised-or matired '
(excluding write-offs) 843 - - 843
Transfers to Stage 1 (391) - 391 -

Transfers to Stage 2
Transfersto Stage 3 - - - -
impact on period end ECL of exposures

transferred between stages-during the period 378 - - 376
Changes to inputs used for ECL-calculations 830 - - 530
At 31 December 2018 {1,288) - - (1,288)
Letters of credit Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECLs as at 1 Jahuary 2018 {23) - - (23)
New exposures 1 - - (1}

Exposures derecognised or matured

(excluding write-offs). - - - -
Transfers t¢ Stage 1 - - - -
Transfers to Stage 2 - - - _
Transfers to Stage 3 - - - =
Impact on peried end ECL of exposures

transferred between stages during the period - - - -
Changes to inputs.used for ECL calculations 20 - - 20

At 31 December 2018 (4) - - {4)

As at 1 January and 31 Decermber 2018 ECL relating to undrawn loan commitments rounds to zero.
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Net fee and commission income

Net feg and commission incorme comprises:

: Se_ﬂlemenis operations

Seérvicing plastic card operations
Cash operations
Guarantees and letter of credit

Other

Fee and commission income

Servicing plastic-card _operétio_ns

‘Settlements operations.

Cash gperations
Securities operations

Other

Fee and commission éxpense

Net fee and commission income

Other income

As at:31 December 2018, other income of AZN 184 thousand (2017; AZN 1,040 thousarid) primarily comprise of penalty

fee from customers due fo early withdrawal of term deposits.

Personnel, general and administrative expenses

Personnel expenses comprise;

‘Salaries and bonuses

Social security costs
Other employee related expenses

Personnel expenses

Genaral and administrative:expenses comprise!

Occupancy and fent
Marketing andadvertising

‘Operating taxes other than income tax

Membeérship expenses
Communication

Deposit insurance expense

Legal and consultancy

Security

Data processing

Office Supplies

Repair and mairitenance of property and equipment
Utility expenses ' '
Business travel and related expenses.
Other

Total general and administrative expenses

2018 2017
2,475 1,947
2:200 1,945
1,571 1,476

900 1,059
312 281
7,458 5,708
1,971) (1,719)
{716) (709)
(602) {156)
81) (83)
(153) (78)
(3,503) (2,745)
3,955 3,963

2018 2017
(7,568) (6:680)
(1,685) (1,462)

(418) - (315)
(9,666) (8,457)

2018 2017

(2,766) {2,765)
(724) (632)
(675) (807)
(431) (225)
(384) (273)
(337) (302)
(325} (163)
(308) (397)
1305y (525)
(223) (71
(208) 217)
(158) {148)
{123) (90)
{845) (432)

{7,812) {7,145}
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Risk management.

Introduction

Risk.is inhereit in the Bank’s activities but it is’ managed lhrough a-process of ongomg identification, measurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk mahagement is critical to the Bank’s continuing
profitability and each individual within the Bank is accountable for the risk’ exposures refating to his or hier responsibilities.

The Bank is exposed to credit risk, fiquidity risk and market risk. It is also subject to operating risks.

The independent risk-control process does not Include business risks such as chianges ift the environient technology
and industry. They are monitored through the Bank’s strategic planning process.

Risk management structure

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for identifying -and controlling risks; however, there. are separate
indepeéndent bodies responsible for managing and monitering risks.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is résponsible for the overall risk management approach and for : approwng thefisk strategies and
principles.

Audit Comittee

The Audit Commitiee. has the. overall respon5|blllty for the ‘establishment and development of the audit. mission and
strategy. ltis responisible for the funidamental audit i issues ‘and monitoring Intemal Audit's: activities.

Management Board

The Management Board has the résponsibility to manitor the overall fisk process within the Bank.

Risk Commitlee

The Risk Commitiee has the.overalt responsibiiity for the development of the risk strategy and implementing principles,
frameworks, policies and limits. It is responsible for the fundarmental risk issues and manages and monitors: relevant risk
decisions.

Risk Management

The Risk Management Departmentis responsible for implementing and maintaining risk related procedures to ensure an
independent Gontral process,

Bank Treasury

Bank Treasury is responsible for managing the. Bank’s assets and fiabilities and the overall financial structure. It is also
primarity responsible far the funding and Ilqt.ud:ty risks of the Barik.

Inteinal Audit

Risk. management processes throughout the Bank are audited annually by the internal audit function that examines both
the adequacy of the procedures and the Bank’s compliance with the procedures. Internal Audit discusses the results of
all assessivients with management, and reports its findings and- recommendations to the Audit Comimittee.

Risk-measurement and reporing systems

The Bank's risks are measured using a method which reflécts both the expected loss likely to arise in normal
circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an ¢stimate of the ultimate actual loss based on statistical modéls.
The models make use of probabilities derived from historical experience, adjusted to reflect the economic.environment.
The Bank also runs worse case scenarios that would-afise in the event that exireme events which are unlikely to occur
do, in fact, occur.

Menitoring and controlling tisks. is primarily performed based-on limits established. by the Bank. These limits reflect the
business strategy anid market environment of the Bank as well as the leve! of risk that the Bank is willing to accept, with
additional enphasis on selected industries. In addition the Bank monitors and measures the overall risk bearing capacity
in relation ta the aggregate risk exposure across all risks types and activities.
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Risk management (continued)
Introduction {continued)

Information compiléd from 4ll the businesses.is examined and processed in-order fo analyse, control and identify early
risks. This information is presented and explained 1o the Management Board, the Risk Committée, and the head of each

‘business division. The report includes aggregate credit exposure, hold limit exceptions and liquidity ratios. On a monthly

basis detailed reporting of industry, customer and geographic risks takes place. Senior management assesses
the appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses on a guarterly basis: The Board of Direglors receives a
comprehensive risk report once a quaiteér which is- de5|gned to provide all the necessary information to assess and
conciude on the risks of the Bank.

For ail levels thraughout the Bank, specifically tailored risk reports are prepared-and distributed in order to ensure that

all business divisions have access to éxtensive, necessary and up-to-date information.

-A daily briefing is given to the Management Board and all other relevant employees of the Bank on the utilization of

market imits and liquidity, plus any other risk developrents.
Risk mitigation

The Bank acfively uses collateralto reduce its credit rigks.
Excessive risk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of countérparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same

_geographlc region, or have-similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be

similarly affected by chanQES in economic, political or other conditions, Concentrations indicsdte the relative sensitivity of
the Bank's performance to developments affecting a. particulai industry.

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risks, the Bank's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to
focus. on maintaining a diversified porifolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed

.atcordingly.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that the Bank will incur a loss because its customers, clients. or counterparties failed to dlscharge
theircontractual obligations. The Bank.manages.and controls credit risk. by setting Fmits on the amount of risk it is willing
to.accept forindividual counterparties and for geographical and industry concentrations, and by monitoring exposuresin
relation to such fimits.

The Bank has estabfished a credit quality review process to provide ‘early. identification. of possible ¢hanges in the
creditworthiness of counterparties, including regular col Hateral revisions: Counterparty limits are established by the use
of a eredit risk classification system The-crédit quallty review process allows the Bank fo assess.the potential loss as a

-result-of the risks.to ‘which it js exposed and take corréctive action.

Credit-refated commitments risks

The Bank rakes avaitable to its custormers guarantees which may require that the Bank make paymients on their behalf.
Such payments are colleécted from customers based on the terms of the letter of credit. Theéy expose the Bank fo similar
risks to loans and these are mitigated by the same. control processes and policies.

The makimum exposure 10 -credit risk for the components of the statement of financial position, before the efféct of
mitigation through the use of master netting and collateral agreemients, is best represented by their carrying amounts.

Where financial instruments are recorded at fair value, the carrying value represents the current credit risk exposure but
not the maximumrisk exposure that could arise.in the future as.a result of changes in values.

For more detail on the maximum éxposure-to credit risk for each-class of financial instrument, references shall be made
to the specific notes. The effect of collateral and other risk mitigation techniques is shown in Note 8.
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Risk management (continued)
Credit risk {(continued)
Impairment assessment

From 1 January 2018, the Bank calculates ECL based on several prob’abi!it}uwe]ghted sceénarios to measure the expected
cash shorifalls, discounted at an approximation to-the EIR. A cash shertfall is the difference between the cash flows that
are due to'an entity in accordance with the contract-and the cash flows that the entity expecis to receive. The mechanics
of the ECL calculations are outlined bélow and the key elements are as foliows:

FD The Probability of Defaultis an estimate of the likelihood of default over a gwen time-horizon. A defauit
may only happen at-a cértain time over the assessed period, if the facility has not been previously
derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

EAD The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expacted changes in the exposure after the feporing date, including repayments of principal ‘and
interest, whether scheduled by contract or otherwise, expected drawdowns on committed fagilities,
and.accrued interest from missed: payments.

LGD The Loss Given Defaultis an estimate of the-loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a given
time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due-and those that the lender
would expect to receive, including from the raaligation of any collateral, It is usually expressed as a
percentage of the EAL,

The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit
loss or LTECL), unless there has-been no significant increase in crédit risk since. origination, in'which casg, the allowance
s based onrthe 12 months’ expected credit loss (12mECL). The 12mECL is.the portion of LTECL that represerit the ECLs
that result from default events on a.financial instrument that are possible within the 12 months-after the reporting date.

Both LTECL and 12mECL. are calculated on either an individual basis of a collective basis, depending on the nature of
the underlying portiolio of financial instruments.

The Bank has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial
instrument’s credit risk has.incréased significantly since initial récognition; by considering the change In the risk of default
oceurring aver the remaining life of the financial instrument. Based onthe above process, the Bank groups its loans into
Stage 1, Stage 2, Stage 3 and POCI, as described. below:.

Stage1: When loans are first recognized, the Bank recognizes an allowarice based on 12mECL. Stage 1 loans
also include facilities where the credit risk has improved and the loan has been reclassified fiom
Stage 2.

Stage 2; When a loan has shown a significant increase in credit risk since originaticn, the Bank records an

aliowance for the LTECL. Stage 2 loans alsa include facilities, where the credit risk has improved and
the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3: Loans considered credit-impaired. The Bank records an allowance for the LTECL.

POCI: Purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets are financial assets that are crédit impaired on
initial recognition. POCI assets are recorded-at-fair value at original recagnition ‘and interest revenue
is subsequently recogmsed based on-a credlt-adjusted EIR. ECL are only recognised or released to
the extent that-there is a subseguent change in the lifetime expected credit losses.

Definifion of default and cure
The Bank. considers a financial instrument defaulted and. therefore Stage 3 (credit-impaired) for ECL. calculations in all
cases when the borrower becomes 80 days past due on its-contractual payments. The Bank considers amounis die

from banks defaulted and takes immediate action when the required intraday payments are not settled by the close of
business as outlined in the individual agreements
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Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

As a part of a qualitative. assessment of whether a customer is in default; the Bank also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate untikeliness to pay. When such gvents occur, the Bank carefully considers whethier the event should
resuit in treating the customer as défaulted and therefore assessed &s Stage 2 for ECL calguiations or whether Stage 2
is appropriate. Such events include:

> Default and Credit-impaire‘d assets!
- Loans with principal amount and/or accrued interest and/or any -of other paymerit overdue by more than
‘90 days from the.date specified in the coritract.
- .Loans that have been restructured.
> Any loan considered by management as non-performing.
- Existing of information that borrower- willfhas enter bankruptcy, i'ns_olv'ency or a similar condition.
> Default on other financial instrumenis of the same borrower.
> Default according to external rating.

Itisthe Bank's- poficy to.consider a financia! instrument as ‘cured”and therefore re-classified out of Stage 3 when none
of the default criteria have been present for at least six consecutive months. The decision whether to classify an asset
as Stage 2 or'Stage 1 once cured depends onthe updated credit grade, at the tifme.of the cure, and whetherthis indicates
there has heén a significant increase in credit risk compared to-initial recognitior:.

PD estimation process.

The Bank runs separate modeis for its key porifolios. The models incorporate quantitative inforiation and utilise
supplemental external information that could affect the Borrower's biehaviour. In order to consider the impact of
magcroeconamic facters on probablllty of default, sensitivity of probabilities to the macroeconomic factors are calgulated
by statistical regréssion:method. Where practicable, PDs, incorporate forward looking macroeconomic information and
the IFRS 9 stage classification of the expasure, are assigned for each-grade. This is repeated for each economic scenatio
as appropriate. '

Treasury and interbank relationships

The Bank’s treasury and. jnterbank. relationships and counterparties- comprise financial services institutions, banks,
broker-dealers, exchanges and clearing-Hiouses. For these relationships, the Bank analyses publicly available information
suich as finaricial infermation and other external data, e. g. the externai ratings.

Consumer lending and residential morigages.

C.onsu_rner lending comprises secured and unsecured personal loans, credit cards and overdrafts. These products along
with residential mortgages and some of the less complex small business lending are rated by days past due,

The probability of default for consumér loans is calculated vsing migration matrices. For this purpose, simplified migration
matrices, which reflect the change from respective month-of ane year to the same month of the next year are prepared
based on the amounts: of joans in each matrices, Other key inputs, into the models are non-oil GDP growth,
AZNMISD rates, and LTV ratios.

Corporate and small business lending .

The 'same approach and inputs as for consumer lending appliss to-corparate and small business lending. For corporate
loans, migration matrices used in the PD.and LGD calculations are datermined by the number of loans in each matrices.

Exposure at defauit
The exposure at default (EAD) represents the gross carrying amount of the fi nandial ‘nstruments subject to the

impairment calculation, addressing both the client's ability to increase its exposure while approaching default and
potential early repayments too.
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Risk management {(continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Loss given defauit

For corporate I"ending._a_ssets. LGD values-are assessed at least quarterly by accolnt managers and reviewed arid
approved by the Barik.

Ttie credit risk asSessment is based on a standardized LGD assessment framework that results.in a cerain LGD rate.

These LGD rates take into-account the expected EAD in comparison-to the amount expected to-be recovered or. realised

fram any collateral held.

The Bank segments its retail lending products into smatler homogeneous portfolios, based on key ¢haracteristics that
are relevant:to the estimation of fulure cash flows. The applied data is based on historically. collected: loss data and
involves & wider set of transaction characteristics {e.g., product type) as well as borrower ch_aracter!_stlcs_

Where appropriate, further recent data is used in order to determine the IFRS 9 LGD rate for each group of financial
instruments. When assessing forward-looking information, the. expectation is based on multiple scenarios. Examples of

key mputs involve ¢hanges in, collateral values mclud:ng praperty prices for mortgages, commodity prices, payment

status or other factors that are :ndtcanve of losses in the group.

LGI? rates are estimated for the Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 segment of each asset class.

Significant increase in credit nsk

The Bank continuously ménitors all assets subject to ECLs. In order to determiné whether an instrument or a portiolio-of
instruments is subject to 12mECL o LTECL, the Bank assesses whethér thére has been a significant increase in credit

risk since initiai recognition.

The Bank also applies a.secondary gualitative method for triggering a significant incréase in credit sk for an asset, such

.as moving a customerffacility to the watch list, or theé accolint becoming restructiired due to éredit event. In ceftain cases,

the Bank may also consider that events explained in “Definition of default” section above are a significant increase in
credit risk @s opposed to a default, Regardless of the change in credit grades, if contractual payments are more than
30 days past due, the credit risk is déemed to have increased szgnlfcantly sincé initial recognition.

When estimating ECLs on a collective basis fora group of similar assets, the Bank applies the: same. principles for
assessing whether there has:been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

Grouping financial assets measured on acollective basis

Depeéndent on the factors below, the Bank calculates ECLs either on a colléctive or on an individual bigsis.

Asset classes where the Bank calculates ECL on an individual basis. include:

- The treasury and interbank relativhships (such as amounts due from banks, éash equivatents and debt investrenit
securities.at amortised cost and FVOCI).

ECL on all other asssts calculated on collectivé basis.
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Risk management (continued)

Credit risk {(continued)

Forward-fooking information and multiple economic.scenarios

Inits ECL models, the, Bank relies.on-a broad range of farward locking information as ecehomic inputs, such as:
- GDP;

» Not-oil GDP;

»  Real GDP;

- Non-dil real GDP;:

. Nominal people income;

> Nominal salaries;

» Budget income:

> Budget experises;

> Budget deficit;

> [nvestments in basic capital;

> Consumer Price index;

> USD/AZN rate;

» Nominal effective FX rate;

- Non-oil Nominal affective FX rate;

» Real effective FX rate;

> Non-oil Rea! effective FX rate;

> Volume of overdue credits in the country;
> Percentage of overdue ioans to total oans.

The inputs.and models used for caiculating ECLs may. not-always capture all characteristics of the market at the date of
the financial staiements. To reflect this, qualitative adjustments- or overlays are occasionally made as temporary
adjustments when such differences are significantly materiai..

Credit quality per class of financial assets.

The Bank classifies its credit related assets as foliows:

High grade - counterpames with highly liquid collaterals or strong government support, excellent financial performance
having no ‘changes in the terms and conditions of loan agreements and no everdue in principal and interest.

Standard grade - counterparties.with- stable financial performance, having no changes in the terms and conditions of
loan agréements and rfic overdue in principal and interest.

Sub-standard-grade — counterparties-with satlsfactory financial pedormance, having chaigeés in the terms-and-conditions
of loan agreements-and no overdue in principal and interest.

Impaired — cotinterparties-with unsatisfactory financial performiance, having ¢hanges in the terms and tonditions of loan

‘agreements and overdug in pringipal and interest.
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Risk management {continued)

Credit risk {continued)

High Standard  Sub-standard _
_ Note -grade grade grade impaired Total
Cash and cash equivalents, ' o
“except for cash on hand 3 5 Stage 66,417 35,680 - - 102,087
Amounts due from credit instititions (<3 Stage 1 4,704 11,042 - - 15,746
Loans.to customers at amortised cost 8 _ _
- Government relatéd entities Stage 1 26,334 1,484 -~ - 27,818
- Loans to individuals — consumer Stage 1. 12,572 35,724 - - 48,206
loans: Stage 2 - - 588 - 568
‘Stage 3 - = - 2,407 2,407
- Corporatz loans. Stage 1 709 33,054 - - 33,763
‘Stage 2 - - 248 - 248
Stage 3 - - - 14,431 14,431
- Loans to individuals. ~ entrepréneurs Stage 1 - 1,233 - - 1,233
Stage 2. - - 52, - 62
Stage 3 - - - 4,831 4,831
- Loans to individuals — mortgage Stage 1 = 47 979 = - 47,979
ioans ‘Stage 2 - - 199 - 199
Stage 3 - B - 81 61
Debt securities at FVOC 7. Stage 1 51,782, ~ - - 51,782
Other financial assets 13 Stage1 945 349 - - 1,294
Undrawn [o@n commitments . . _ . . _
nerawn fodn ¢ 17 Stage1 2491 12,430 - - 14,921
St=ge 2 - - 32 - 32
Leth f credit. . .
etiers of aredit 17 Stage 1 - 272 - - 212
Fi fal guarante ' . . "
ancial graranices 17 ‘Stege 1 969 35063 - - 36,032
Total 166,923 214,310 1,099 21,730 404,062

The table below shows gross balances under IAS 39 as at 31.December 2017 based on the Bank's internal credit rating
system:

Neither past due nor impairéd Past
High Standard  Sub-standard. .due butnot  Individually
grade grade grade impaired impaired Yotal
Notes 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Cash and:cash equivalents _ ]
(excluding cash on hand) 6 47,693 50,779 - - - 138;472
Amourits dué from credit: S _
institutions 8 22,865 3198 - - - 26,061
Securities available for sale _
(excluding equity shaies) 7 - 4,008 - - - 4,008
toans:io government owned _ '
entities ' 8 36,350 4,697 - 2,004 - 43,051
Corparats loans. 8 - 14,624 2,560 2471 13,474 33129
L.oans-to individuals — ' _
mortgage & - 26,601 - ‘5 - 26,606
Loans to individuals.— _ N
£onstimer 8 832 19,969 452 24978 - 24,231
Loans to individuals -
entrepreneirship 8 - 877 3,589 2,943 2,969 10,178
Other financial agséts 13 - 238 - - - 238
Totat 107,740 164,789 6,501 10,401 16,443 305,974
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Risk management (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

In the table above cash and cash equivalents, amounts due from credit institution and lean customers of high grade are.
those having-a minimal level of credit risk, normally with a credit rating on of- close to sovereign level or very well
collateralised. Other borrowers with good financial position and good debt service are included in the standard grade.
Sub-standard ‘grade comprises loans below standard grade but not individually impaired. Past due loans to customers
include those that are only past due by afew days. An analysis of past due loans as at 31 December 2017, by age, is
provided below. The majority of the past due loans are not considered fo be impaired.-

Aging analysis of past dué but not impaired loans per ¢lass of financial-asséts

Less than 31to 6Tto More than. _

30 days 60 days 80 days 90 days Total
_ 2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
Loans to customers _ -
Loans to government owned entities - - - 2,004 2,004
Corporate loans - 4 - 2,467 2,471
Loans to individuals-consumer 57 109 68 2,744 2,978
Loans io individuals-entrepreneurship 229 = - 2714 2,943
Loans to'individuals-mortgage 5 - - - 5
Total 291, 113 68 9,929 10,401

See Note 8 for miore detailed information with respect to the allowance for impairtrient of loans to customers.

Financial guarantees, lefters: of credit and loan commitments are assessed and a provision for expected credit losses is
caloulated in similar manner as for loans.

The geographical concentration of Bank's financial assets and liabilities is set-out below:

2018 2017
CIS and CIs and
other other
_ foreign foreign.
Azerbaijan QECD couniries Total Azerbaijan  CECD. countries Total

Assets
Cashand.cash o _ _ _

-equivalents 08,654 19,935 2,193 120,792 156,270 12,038 1,998 170,306
Amounts due from credit ) _ ]

mnstitutions 3,790 6,830 5126 15,746 1,493 24,568 - 26,061
investment securities 51,827 - o= 51,827 4,053 - - 4,053
Loans to customers 165,326 - - 165,326 116,730 - - 116,730

319,808 27,751 7.426 ° 354,985 278,704 36,633 2,051 317,388

Liabilities-
Amourits due to credit

institutions and

government )

organizations 88,378 12 1,847 90,337 74,475 - - 74,476
Amounts due to _ N _

customars 216,135 2,554 1,319 220008 180,772 19,739 73 200,584
Other financial liabilities 1,451 766 36. 1,953 1,599 49 - 1,648

305,664 3,332 3,302 312,298 256,847~ ° 19,788 73 276,708

Net assets 14,144 24,419 4,124 42,687 21,857 16,845 1,978 40,680

Liquidity risk and funding management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will be unable to meet its payment obligations when they fall due urider normaj and
stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged diversified funding sources in addition to its-core
deposit base, manages. assets with liquidity in mind, and monitors future cash flows arid liquidity on a daily Basis. This
incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade coilateral which could be used to
secure additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains 'a portfolio of marketable and diverse asséts that can be easily liquidated in the event of ap

unforeseen interruption of cash flow. In addition, the Bank maintains obligatory reserves with the CBAR, the: amount of

which. depends on the level of customer funds attracted.
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Risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk and funding management (continued}

The liquidity position is assessed and managed by the Bank based on cerfain liquidity ratios. estabilshed by the CBAR.
The CBAR requires banks to maintain instant liquidity ratio-of more than 30%. As at 31 December, these rafios. were as
follows:

2018, % 2017,%

Instant Liquidity Ratio (assets receivable or realisable within one day /
liabilities repayable on demand) 7277 100.9

Analysis of financial fiabiliies by remaining coritractual maturities

The fables below summarize the maturity profile of the Bank's financiaj liabilities 'at 31 Décember based oh contraciual
undiscounted repayment obiigations. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if hotice were given
immediately. In accordance with the AZerbaijan legislation, the Bank is obllged to repay the principal amounts of a-term
deposit upon demand of a depositor. However, in line with its deposit retention history the Bank expects the average
deposit tenors to exceed: the contractuai maturities of its customer depasits that are displayed below.

. . _ Less than 3to Tto Over
As at 31 December 2018 3months  12months 5 years & years Total
Financial liabilities
Amounts due credit institutions and government _

organizations 18,715 3,245 36,987 40,869 99,816
Amounts. due to customers. 163,120 32,313 10,669 27,824 233,926
Other liabilities 1,863 - - - 1,953
Total undiscounted financial liabilifies 183,788 _ 35,558 47,656 68,693 335,695

Lessthan = 3to 1to Over

As &t 31 December 2017 3 months 12 months 5 years 5 years. Total
Financial liabilities
Amounts due to credit institutions and o N

government arganizations 18,716 3,245 36,087 40,868 99,816
Amounts dug o custorners 163,120° 32,313 10,669 27.824 233,926
Other liabilities 1,953 _ - - - 1,953
Total undiscounted financial liabilities 183,788 35,558 47,656 _ 68:693 335695

The table below shows the coritractual expiry by maturity of the Bank's credit related commitments. Each undrawn loan
commitrnent is-included in thetime band containing the earliest date it can be drawn down. Forissued financial guarantee
and letters of credit contracts, the maximum amount is agllocated to the earliest pefiod in which the contract could be
called.

Less than 2to 1to Over

3.months 12 months 5 years: 5 years Total
2018 18,137 25,569 7,550 1 51,257
2017 22,737 13,060 5,154 - 40,951

The Bank expects that not all of the contingant liabilities or commitments will be drawn before expiry of the commitments.

The Bank’s capability to repay its liabilities refies on its ability fo réalise @n equivalent amount of assets within the. same
period of time. There is a significant concentration‘of amounts due te government arganizations in the period of dne year.
Any significant withdrawal of theseé. funds would have an adverse impact on the operations of the Bank. This level of
fundlng will remain with the Bank for the'foreseeable fiituré anid that in the event of withdrawal of funds; the Bank would
be given sufficient nibtice so as to realise its fiquid assets fo enable repaymant..

The maturity analysis does not reflect the historical stability of current accounts. Their liquidation has' historlcally taken

place overa Ionger period than indicated iri the tables above. These balances are included in amounts due.in less than
three manths in the tables above.
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Risk management (continued)
Market risk

Market risk is thie risk that the fair value -or future cash flows of financial instruments wili fiuctuate due to changes-in
market variables such as infgrest rates, foreign exchanges, and equity pricés. Thé Bank does not have aniy significant
equity, corporate fixed income, or derivatives holdings.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments.

The sensnmty of current year profit is the effect of the assumed changes'i in interest rates. on the net irterest incomeé for-
one year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities held &t 31 December,
The sensitivity of equ;ty is calculated by revaluing fiked rate investment securities at 31 December for the effects of the
assumed changes in interest rates based on the: assumption that there are parallel shifts in the yield curve. However, as
interest rate of investment secu rities in-the Jocal market is based on the carfied accrued:discount or premiums on theseé
securities at the time of purchase or sale (as included in-actual price of purchased or sold securities), thus, any change
in the rates to be applied fo the fixed-rate investment securities does not have: any impact or effect on equity. As at
31 December 2018, the Bank does not have floating rate non-trading financial instiuments,

Currency risk

Currency risk js the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.,
The Management Board has set limits on positions by clrrency based on the CBAR regulations. Positions are monitored
on a daily basis.

The tables below indicate the currencies to which the Bank had. significant exposure at-31 December on'its non-trading
monetary assats and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The analysis calculates the effect of a reasonably possible
movement of the curiency rate against the manat; with all ofher variables held conistant-on the statement of profit or loss
{due-to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities). The effect on equity does not
differ from the effect on the statement-of profit or loss. A negative amount.in the table reflects a poterifial net reduction in
statément of profit orloss or equlty, while a positive amount reflects a net potential increase.

Increase jn Increase in
currency rate Effect on profit currency rate  Effect on profit
in% before tax in% before tax
Currency 2018 2018 2017 2017
usD ' 14.00% (32) 11.00%. 1,424,
EUR 14.00% 2,172 14.00% 318
Decrease in Decrease in
currency rate Effect on profit currency rate Effect on profit
in% -before tax in% beéfore tax
Currency. 2018 2018 2017 2017
uso -3.00% 7 -11.00% 1,424)
EUR -3.00% {466) -14.,00% (318)

‘Operational risk

Operatichal risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail
ta perform, operational risks can cavse damage to reputation, hiave legal or regulatory implications, of lead to financial
loss. The Bank cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but through a conitrol framework and by menitoring and
respondlng t6 potential risks, the Bank is able. to. manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties,
access, authorization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and. assessment processes, including the use of
internal augit,
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Fair value measurement

Fair value hierarchy

The Bank uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation

technigue;
- Level 1:-quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
- Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have a- significant effect on the recorded fair value are

observable, either directly or indirectly; and

[ Level 3: techniqués which use inputs which haveé a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based

on observable market data.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Bank has determined classes of assets-and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or tiability and the level of the fair value h|erarchy as explained above.

Assets measured at fair value
Investment securities at FvOCI

Loans to customers at FVPL

Assets for which fair values are

disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts due from credit institations
Loans fo customers

Other financial assets

Liabilities for which fair values are

disclosed

Amounts due ta credit institutions and
government organizations
Amounts due to customers

Other financial habilities

Assets measured at fair value
Investment securities available-for-

sale

Assets for which fair values are

disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents
Amounts.due from credit institutions.
Loans to customers

Other financial assets

Liahilities for which fair values dre

disclosed

Amounts.due to creditinstitutions and
govemment organizations
Armounts due to customers

Other-financial fiabilities

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices. Significant Significant
in active observable unobservahle
Date of markets inputs: inputs.
“valuation {Level 1} (Level 2) {Level 3) Total
31 December
2018 - - 51,827 51,827
31 Decembar i
2018 - - 528 528
31 December
2018 - - 120,792 120,792
31 December
2018 - - 15,746 16,746
31 December ]
2018 - - 164,798 164,798
31 December
2018 - - 1,204 1,294
31 December
2018 - - 80,337 90,337
31 December _
2018 - - 220,008 220,608
‘31 December
2018 - 1,953 1,953
Fair value measurement using
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
Date of markets. inputs inputs
valuation {Level 1): {Level 2) {Level 3} Total
31 December ]
2017 4,008 45 4,053
31 December
2017 170,308 - 170,306
31 December
2017 - 26,061 26,081
31 December
2017 - - 116,730 116,730
31 December
2017 - - 238 238
31 December
2047, - - 74,478 74,478
31 December _
2017 - 200,584 200,584
31 December. o _
2017 = 1,648 1,648
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Fair value measurement (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Fair value of financial assets and fiabilitiés not carried at fair valug

Set out below is a companson by class of the carrying amounts and. fatr vaiues of the Bank's financial instruments that

are not.carried at fair value in the statemem offinancial position. The table does not mclude the fair values of non- financial
asséts and non-financial liabilities:

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
_ 2018 2018 2017 2017
Financial assets _
Cash-and cash equivalents 120,792 120,792 170,308 170,308
Amounts due from credit.institutians 18,746 156,746 28,061 26,081
Loans to customers 164,738 160,156 118,730 107,618
cher‘-ﬁnanc_ial assetfs 1,294 1,294 238 238
Financial liabilities.
Amounts due to credit institutions and o _ _
government organizations 90,337 91,011 74,478 74,968
Amounts due to'customers 220,008 228,231 200,584 213,086
Cther financial liabiiities 1,953 1,853 1,648 1648

Valuation technigques and assumptions

The following describes the méthodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for assets and habilities
recprded at fair value in the finantial statements and those itemis that are not measured at faii value in the statement of

“financial position, but whose fair value is'disclosed..

Assets for which fair value approximales carrying vajue

For financial assets and financial liabilities that-are liquid or having a short-term maturity (less than three months) it is
assumed that the carrying amounts apprommate to their fair value, Thig assumptlon is also applied to demand deposits
and savings-accounts without a specific maturity.

Loans at fair value through profit or loss

Loans at fair value through profit o loss are valued using a combination of approaches. Where appropriate, loans are
valued with reference to observable prices of debt:securities issued by the borrowsr or by comparable entities. in other
cases, valuation is performed using internal models based.on present value technigues-or, in some circumstances. (for
example, in respect of cash flow from assets held as callateral), externat valuation reports. The non- -cbservable inputs to
the models include. adjustments for credit, market and liquidity risks associated with the expected :cash flows from the
borrower's operations. or in respect of collateral valuation.

investmeni securities

Investment securities valued using.a valuation technigue or pricing models primarily consistof unquoted eqw{y and deb’r
securities. These secuiities. are valued using models which sometimes only incorperate data observable in the market
and at other times use both obsérvable and non-cbisérvable datd. The non-observablé inputs to the models include
assumptions regarding the future financial performance of the investee, its risk profile; and economic assumptions
regarding the industry and geographical jurisdiction in which the-investee operates.

Financial assets and financial fabilities carried at amortized cost
The fair value of unquoted instruments, loans te customers, customer deposits, ameunts due from credit institutions and

amounts due to crédit institutions and’ governiment organizations and other financial assets and liabilities is estimated by
dascountmg future cash flows using rates currently available-for debt on-similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities:
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Fair value measurement {continued)

Movements in level 3 assets at fair value

The following tables show a reconciliation of the opening and closing amount of Level 3-assets which are recorded at fair
valua: '

Total gain
recorded
in-other
At Transfers At ‘Total gain compie- ) At.
31 December atadoption 1January recortdedin  Bensive 31 December
2017 of IFRS & 2018 profitorioss incorne  Purchases Settlements 2018

Financial Asséts
Loans to.

customers at ) .

FVPL - 1.211 1211 - - - {683) 528
Investment

_securities — debt

securities-at

FVOCI - - - - -49 208,810 {158,077) 51,782
Investrment

securities -

equity securities

at FVOGI 45 - 45 - = - i 45
Total level 3 - o

financial assets 45 1,211 1,256 - 49 209,810 {158,760) 52,355

Significant unobservable inputs-and sensitivity of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
to changes to key assumptions

The following tabie shows the qu_antifa_tive information about significant unobservable inputs: used in the fair value
measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy:

Range
_ Carrying Valuation Unobservable. (weighted
31 December 2018 amount techniques input average)
Loans to customers at FVTPL
Loans to customers at FYTRL 528 Discounied
cash flow .Discount rate 5%-7% (6%)
investment securities measured at FVOCI
Equity securities 45 Other pla n/a
Debt securities 51,733, Discounted 7%:-10%
Cash Flow Discount rate. (various)
Range
Carrying Valuation Unobservable {weighted
31 December 2017 : amount technigues input average)
Investment securities — available-for-sale:
Equity securities 45: Other n/a n/a

In'order to determine reasonably possible alternative asstmptions the Baink adjusted the above key unobservable
model inputs as follows: '

- For'debt securities and loans to customers, the Bank adjusted the discount rate assumption by increasing and
decreasing the assumption by 1%.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

Significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity of level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value
to.changes to key assumptions {continued)

The following table shows the impact on the fair value of level 3 instruments of using reasonably possibie alternative
assumptions:

31 December 2018 31 December 2017
Effect of Effect of
reasonably reasonably
Carrying possible alternative Carrying possible alternative
amount assumptions amount assumpltions

Financial assets
Loans to customers at FVTPL, 528, 518-538 - -
Equity securities 45 n/a 45, ‘nfa
Debt securities: 51,733 51,714-51 837 - -

Maturity analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shbws ai analysis of asséls and liabilities according to when they are expected 1o be due or settled.
See Note21 “Risk management”for the Bank’s cantractual uridiscounted repayrent: oblsgatlons

2048 2017
Within More than Within More than
one year one year Total oneyear oneyear Total

Cash and cash equivalents 120,792, - 120,792 170,306 - 170,306
Amaounts due from credit _

institutions, 15,746 - 15,746 26,0687 - 26,061
Investment securities available-.

for-sale _ 51,782 45 51,827 4,008 45 4,053
Loans to customers 57,203 108,123 165,326 43,796 72,934 116,730
Praperty and equipiment - 5,626 5,626 - ‘6,421 6,421
Intangible asséts - 3,076 3,076 - 2,570 2,570.
Currentincome tax asseis 483 - 483 - 804 804
Deferred income tax.assets - - - - 37 o
Other assets 3,880 - 3,980 2868 - 2,868
Total 249,986 116,870 366,856 247,039 83,145 = 330,184
Amounts due to credit institutions

and government organizations 21,234 69,103 90,337 12,293 62,183 74,476
Amounts due fo customers. 193,523 26,485 220,608 173,547 27,037 200,584
Deferred income tax liability - 85 a5 - - -
Other liabilities 4,522 - 4,522 3,800 = 3,800
Total 219,279 95,683 314,962 489,640 89,220 278,860
Net 30,707 21,187 51,894 57,399 (6,075) 51,324

Related party disclosures

In accerdance with IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures, parties are considered to be related if one ‘party has the ability t6
conitrol the other party or exercise significant |nﬂuence over the other party in. making fi financial or -operational decisions,
In considering :each possible retated party rélationship, .aiténtior is directed to. the substance of the relationship, not
merely the-legal form.

The Government of the Republic of Azerbaijan, acting through the Shareholders, controls the Bank activities.
The Government of the Republic of Azerbaijan directly and zndirectly contrals and has significant influerice over a
s;gnlf icant number of entities. through- its government agencies and other organizations. {together referfed to as
“government institutions”). The Government. of the- Republic of Azerbajjar does not provide to. the general public or
entities undeér its ownership/control a complete list of the entities, which are owned or conirolled directly or indirectly by

the government. Under these circumstances, the management of the Bank disclosed only information that its current

internal management system allows to present in refation 1o operations with government-controlled entities and where
the management believes stich entities could be considered as government-controlied based on its best knowledge.
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Related party disclosures (continued)

Related parties may en{er_-into_ transactions which unrelated parties might not, and transactions between related parties
may not be effected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as. fransactions between unrelated parties,

The volumes of related party fransactions, outstariding balances at the-

the year are as follows:

year end, and related expense and income for

Loans ouistanding at

1 January, gross
Loans jssued during the year
Loan rgpayments diring the year
Effect of translation difference
Dther movements
Loans outstanding at

31 December, gross

Less: allowance for impairment
at 31 Decembsr

Loans outstanding at
31 December, net

Intéreit income on loans
Credit loss reversal

Deposits at 1-January
Deposits received during the

year '
Depaosits repaid during the year
Effect of translation difference
“Other movements.

Deposits at 31 December

Current-accounts as at

31 December

-Gash and'cash equivalents

‘Dug from credif institutions

Investment securities

Interest income on due from
credit institutions

Interest income on investment
securities

Interest expense-on deposits

Other operating expenses

Operating income

Cempensation of key management personnéi is as follows:

Salaries and other benefits
-Bocial security costs

Total key management personnel compensation

2018 2017
Entities under Key mandge- Entities under Key manage-
_ ) common ment common. ment
Shareholderis controf personnel  Shareholders control -personnel
- 43,078 172 - 74,323 102
- . - 117 - = 161
(14,930) (58) - {30,185} (89
- - " - - {1,913} -
- {330) - - 833 -
- 27,518 231 - 43,078 172
- (18) - - (660) (4)
- 27,800 231 = 42,418 168"
- 1,373 16 - 2,143 11
- 1,565, 4 - 475 -
2018 2017
Entities under Key manage- Entities under Key manage-
commuon Cmert commorn ment
Shareholders control personnel  Shareholders control’ personnel
7,327 71,103 - - 57,317 22
- 19,092 - 9,400 18,163, -
(7,327} 113,235) - (2,087) (12.367) -
- - - o (1,924) -
- - - 24 {86) (22).
- 76,950 - 7,327 71,103 -
14,697 20,568 26 2,883 24,467 47
42 46,771 - 257 445, -
5,191 1,351 - - 1,491 -
- 51,782, - - 4,008 -
- 2177 - - 1,792 -
- 1,536 - - 200 -
81 2,504 - 186 1,862 -
- 2,071 - - 1,989 -
- 794 - 19 1,669 5
2018 2017
602 584
135 128
737 712

For the year erided 31 December 2018, key mariagement personne! comprised of nine (2017: ten) members. .
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Capital adequacy

The Bank maintains an actively managed _c_ap_iial baseto coverrisks inherent in the business. The adeguacy of the Bank’s

capital is. monitored by the: FMSA using the ratios estabiished by the CBAR in supervising the Bank.

The primary objectives of the Bank's capital management are to ehsure that the Bank complies with externally imposed

capital requirements and that the Bank maintains strong credit ratings and healthy capital ratios in ordér to support its
business and to maximize sharehalders' value.

The Bank manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and
the risk characteristics of its activities. In order to-maintain oradjust the capital structure, the Bank may adjust the.amount
of dividend payment.to shareholders, raturn ‘capital to shareholders or issue capital securities. No ¢hanges were made -
in the objectives, policies and processes from the previous years.

CBAR capital adequacy ratio

The CBAR requires banks to mairitain a minimum: Tier 1-and total capital adequacy ratio of 5% (2017: 5%) and 10%
(2017: 10%), respagtively, of risk-weighted assets for regulatory capital.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Bank's capital adequacy ratios on this basis were as follows:

2018 2017
Tier 1 capital 50,223 50,715
Tier 2 capital 2,104 1,156,
Less: deductions-frem capital (280) {108)
Total regulatory capital 52,047 51,766
Risk weighted assets 210,664 _ 191,003
Capital adequacy ratio (Tier-1) 23.30% 26.55%
Capital adequacy ratio (Total Capital) 24.18% 27.10%
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